
Cornwall Public Library 
Board of Trustees 

 
October 10, 2019  

7:00 PM Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

I.  Roll  
 

II. Approval of the minutes –September 12, 2019 meeting 
 
III. Financial Review 

Approval of warrant #3 
 
   IV. Public Remarks  
 
   V.  Communications/Donations  

a. Vote to accept Donations 
 
    VI. Director’s Report 
 

                                      See Google docs 
                                                                     

     VII. Committee Reports  
a. Finance Committee 
b. Policy Committee  
c. Building & Grounds Committee  
d. Garden Committee  
e. Friends  
f. Personnel Committee 

 
        VIII. Unfinished Business 
 

        IX. New Business                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
a. 2020 Holiday Schedule 

1. Adding day after Thanksgiving, 2020 only (due to July 4th falling on a Saturday) to 
bring the full day Holidays to 7 as required in the employee handbook. 

b. Good Idea Fund 
                 

            X.   Adjournment 
 

Next Regular Board Meeting: November 14, 2019 7 p.m. 
 



November 1,  2019 
 

Cornwall Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting 

October 10, 2019       7:00 to 9:00 PM 

Minutes 

Meeting was called to order by Amy Cordisco at 7:02 PM 

Roll: 
Trustees Present:  Amy Cordisco,Carol Stein , Susanne Vondrak, Melissa 
Greaves-Kulisek, John Wells, Stephanie Wolf Excused: Meghann Chyla   
 
Charlotte Dunaief, Library Director 
Excused: Emily Milton, Treasurer 
Also present: Library staff member Ellen Winchell (minutes) 

 
1. Approval of the Minutes: A motion to approve the Board of Trustee 

Minutes of September 12, 2019, was made by John Wells, seconded by 
Stephanie Wolf, and unanimously approved.   
 

2. Financial Review:  The Finance committee met on October 09, 2019.  
Expenses were a little lighter this month.  We received our tax money from 
the Cornwall Central School District on 10/4.  A motion to approve Warrant 
#3 in the amount of $75,521.09  was made by Susanne Vondrak, seconded 
by Carol Stein and was unanimously approved.                                                  

3. Public Remarks: None 
 

4. Communications:  A thank you note was received from Carol Stein.  A thank 
you note was received from the Cornwall Democratic Committee thanking 
the Cornwall Public Library for scheduling the candidates’ forum held on 
October 1, 2019.  We received many positive Program Evaluation Feedback 
forms for the following programs: Don’t Skip a Beat, held on 9/3/19, NYS 
Early Vote Law, held on 9/15/19.  

5. Donations: $50 was received from Dr. Barry John Capella, through the 
Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund, and the Janet Goodrich Memorial Fund.  A 
motion to approve the $50.00 donation, was made by Carol Stein, and 
seconded by Stephanie Wolf, and was unanimously approved.   

 



November 1,  2019 
 

6. Director’s Report:  See written report. RCLS will no longer be supporting 
non RCLS computers. This will affect how we allocate the technology funds 
given to us by Schmitt and Skoufis. 
 

7. Committee Reports: 
 

a. Finance Committee:  We have received the initial funds for the DASNY 
construction grant for the lighting and generator project.  After 
deducting the various project funds, the true balance of our capital fund 
is $165,000. We have spent approximately $150,000 so far on the SAM 
roof project grant.  A goal was set to spend the remaining funds by 
November 30, 2019. The bids for replacing the sliding front doors (which 
will be included in the SAM grant) are due on October 17, 2019, which 
should be in the $30-40,000 range. A long-range capital plan will be 
developed to incorporate all the construction projects. 
 

b. Policy Committee:  The revised iPad and Lending Limit policy will be 
tabled for the November Board of Trustees meeting.  The Committee 
worked on the Outreach policies, adding edits on the Home Bound 
Delivery Service form, as well as a Public Relations Policy for the 
Employee Handbook. All proposed changes will be posted on the 
Trustee’s drive for review. 

 

c. Building and Grounds Committee, and Garden Committee.   The 
committee is waiting for Power Gen to submit approx. costs for outdoor 
lighting projects. Bids for replacing the library entrance doors are due 
October 17, 2019. An emergency Board meeting will be held on October 
22 at 6pm, if needed, to approve the winning bid.  

a. The Committee met on September 18, 2019, with Ben Harrell 
about his Eagle Scout Project.  We are asking that he widen the 
path from the parking lot to the Youth Services side portico, to 
make it handicapped accessible.  Ben came prepared with the 
number of pavers he will need, in addition to those next to the 
shed, and other figures for cost, etc. He hopes to submit his 
proposal to the Boy Scouts in Dec. and the Committee will 
continue oversight of the project.   



November 1,  2019 
 

d. Friends: Melissa Greaves-Kulisek attended the Friends meeting today.   
There are a lot of Friends programs coming up, -The Great Give Back on 
October 19th and the Cider and Donuts Program on November 2, 2019. 
The Friends would like to acknowledge all the fundraising work that 
Brenda Goldfarb does for the Friends and are donating a seat on the bus 
in her name for future programs, as well as a raffle. The Friends will also 
be subsidizing the supplies for the adult craft programs scheduled to be 
held at Munger cottage. The Friends also wanted to thank Meaghan and 
Gittel for helping out at the Fall Festival. 

e. Personnel Committee: Committee is working with the Policy Committee 
regarding potential changes in the Handbook. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business: Discussion was had about the funds still being held 
by the Foundation. The Community Foundation of Orange and Sullivan will 
be asked to present potential options to the Board.   
 

9.  New Business:    
a. The 2020 Holiday Schedule was approved after discussion about the 7 

official Library holidays. In keeping with Library policy, an additional 
floating holiday will be given next year in lieu of closing the Library the 
day after Thanksgiving.  

b. Good Idea Fund-A motion to approve the request from Meaghan     
Doyle for a button making machine with supplies and accessories for a 
sum of $640 was made by Melissa Greaves-Kulisek and seconded by 
Susanne Vondrak, and was unanimously approved.    

 

10.   Adjournment:  Motion to adjourn the Board Meeting at 8:23 PM, was 
made by Carol Stein, seconded by John Wells and was unanimously 
approved.   
 

Next Regular Board Meeting Thursday, November 14, 2019 at 7PM 



Type Date Num Memo Split Paid Amount

Architectural Digest
Bill 09/18/2019 2 year renewal 2 year renewal - Exp 12/2022 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 44.99

Total Architectural Digest 44.99

Benninger Landscaping LTD
Bill 09/10/2019 23229 September's  Maintenance - #23229 469 · Service Contracts Paid 800.00

Total Benninger Landscaping LTD 800.00

Blackstone Publishing
Bill 09/23/2019 1137707 1137707 -SPLIT- Unpaid 247.42
Bill 09/23/2019 1138316 1138316 -SPLIT- Unpaid 104.84
Bill 09/30/2019 1139878 1139878 -SPLIT- Unpaid 131.76
Bill 09/30/2019 1141582 1141582 -SPLIT- Unpaid 112.83
Bill 09/30/2019 133054 133054 -SPLIT- Unpaid 77.90

Total Blackstone Publishing 674.75

Boys' Life
Bill 09/30/2019 10000988510 2 Year Renewal -100009885108 exp 12/2021 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 28.00

Total Boys' Life 28.00

Brodart Co. - Juv
Bill 09/23/2019 B5747253 B5747253 410.4 · Juvenile Fiction Unpaid 9.64
Bill 09/23/2019 B5747031 B5747031 -SPLIT- Unpaid 25.41
Bill 09/20/2019 B5749396 B5749396 -SPLIT- Unpaid 9.94
Bill 09/20/2019 B5749725 B5749725 -SPLIT- Unpaid 11.04
Bill 09/20/2019 B5749743 B5749743 410.5 · Juvenile Non Fiction Unpaid 43.07
Bill 09/20/2019 B5749724 B5749724 410.4 · Juvenile Fiction Unpaid 8.78
Bill 09/20/2019 B5760035 B5760035 -SPLIT- Unpaid 171.65
Bill 09/20/2019 B5759580 B5759580 -SPLIT- Unpaid 193.71
Bill 09/20/2019 B5759550 B5759550 -SPLIT- Unpaid 204.04
Bill 09/20/2019 B5759569 B5759569 410.4 · Juvenile Fiction Unpaid 26.36
Bill 09/20/2019 B5760034 B5760034 -SPLIT- Unpaid 26.47
Bill 09/20/2019 B5759896 B5759896 -SPLIT- Unpaid 13.45
Bill 09/20/2019 B5765977 B5765977 -SPLIT- Unpaid 217.92
Bill 09/30/2019 B5768699 B5768699 -SPLIT- Unpaid 534.85
Bill 09/30/2019 B5769173 B5769173 -SPLIT- Unpaid 189.74
Bill 09/30/2019 B5769065 B5769065 -SPLIT- Unpaid 105.87
Bill 09/30/2019 B5769216 B5769216 410.4 · Juvenile Fiction Unpaid 28.27
Bill 09/30/2019 B5769217 B5769217 410.5 · Juvenile Non Fiction Unpaid 3.59
Bill 09/30/2019 B5769212 B5769217 410.5 · Juvenile Non Fiction Unpaid 2.99
Bill 09/30/2019 B5767533 B5767533 -SPLIT- Unpaid 39.46
Bill 09/30/2019 B5767286 B5767286 410.5 · Juvenile Non Fiction Unpaid 13.16
Bill 09/30/2019 B5732193 B5732193 -SPLIT- Unpaid 10.49

Total Brodart Co. - Juv 1,889.90

Brodart Co. (McN)
Bill 09/20/2019 Inv M172264 Inv M172264 - November 2019 410.9 · McNaughton Unpaid 610.75

Total Brodart Co. (McN) 610.75

Cash
Bill 09/25/2019 Replenish Petty Cash Replenish petty cash 3 Q19 1010 · Petty Cash Unpaid 52.33

Total Cash 52.33

Cengage Learning/Gale
Bill 09/23/2019 Inv 68177558 Inv 68177558 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 180.74
Bill 09/23/2019 Inv 68307782 Inv 68307782 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 30.39
Bill 09/23/2019 Inv 67937932 Inv 67937932 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 43.49
Bill 09/23/2019 Inv 68400084 Inv 68400084 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 65.99
Bill 09/23/2019 Inv 68399714 Inv 67541902 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 30.39
Bill 09/23/2019 Inv 68454102 Inv 68454102 410.21 · Adult Non-Fiction Stan... Unpaid 25.60
Bill 09/30/2019 Inv 68518277 Inv 68518277 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 21.59
Bill 09/30/2019 Inv 68600778 Inv 68600778 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 35.23
Bill 09/30/2019 Inv 68613141 Inv 68613141 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 23.99
Bill 09/30/2019 Inv 68613025 Inv 68613025 410.11 · Adult Fiction Standing ... Unpaid 22.40

Total Cengage Learning/Gale 479.81

Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corp
Bill 09/30/2019 8661-0120-00-7 8661-0120-00-7 Period Covering  8-27-19 To... 450 · Fuel/Utilities Unpaid 1,825.70

Total Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corp 1,825.70

Charlotte Dunaief

Cornwall Public Library
Warrant # 3

As of September 30, 2019

Page 1



Type Date Num Memo Split Paid Amount

Bill 09/30/2019 Employee Reimburse Mileage and Office Suppy -SPLIT- Unpaid 156.38

Total Charlotte Dunaief 156.38

Cornwall Public Library - Payroll
Bill 09/10/2019 Pay Per End 9.6.19 Payroll Ending 9.6.19 Pay Date 9.13.19 1012 · OBT Payroll Checking Paid 17,671.49
Bill 09/20/2019 Pay Per End 9-20-19 Payroll Ending 9.20.19 Pay Date 9.27 1012 · OBT Payroll Checking Paid 18,634.65

Total Cornwall Public Library - Payroll 36,306.14

Cornwall Public Library - Trust & Agency
Bill 09/10/2019 Payroll End 9.6.19 Payroll Ending 9.6.19 Pay Date 9.13.19 1003 · Due from Trust & Agency Paid 8,274.67
Bill 09/20/2019 Payroll End 9-20-19 Payroll Ending 9.20.19 Pay Date 9.27 1003 · Due from Trust & Agency Paid 8,655.71

Total Cornwall Public Library - Trust & Agency 16,930.38

Dowser Spring Water
Bill 09/30/2019 Inv # 1826504 Oct. 2019 Water Cooler Delivery -  # 1826504 430.2 · Office supplies Unpaid 37.95

Total Dowser Spring Water 37.95

Elizabeth Fisher
Bill 09/30/2019 Empl Reimburse Mileage Reimbursement 435 · Travel/Conference Unpaid 69.84

Total Elizabeth Fisher 69.84

Family Tree Magazine
Bill 09/18/2019 2 year renewal 2 year renewal - Exp 2/2022 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 49.96

Total Family Tree Magazine 49.96

Hannaford Bros. Co.
Bill 09/23/2019 8-16-19 Purchases 8-16-19 Purchases 430.30 · Adult Unpaid 5.58
Bill 09/30/2019 9-27-19 Purchases 9-27-19 Purchases 430.32 · Juvenile Unpaid 10.41
Bill 09/30/2019 9-23-19 Purchases 9-23-19 Purchases 430.32 · Juvenile Unpaid 6.78

Total Hannaford Bros. Co. 22.77

Harper's Magazine
Bill 09/20/2019 2 year renewal 2 year renewal - Exp 11/2021 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 31.97

Total Harper's Magazine 31.97

Ingram Library Services
Bill 09/23/2019 41873858 41873858 -SPLIT- Unpaid 157.99
Bill 09/20/2019 41845476 41845476 -SPLIT- Unpaid 71.99
Bill 09/20/2019 41805083 41805083 -SPLIT- Unpaid 204.46
Bill 09/20/2019 41772414 41772414 -SPLIT- Unpaid 342.86
Bill 09/20/2019 41690177 41690177 -SPLIT- Unpaid 107.42
Bill 09/20/2019 41749846 41749846 -SPLIT- Unpaid 25.23
Bill 09/20/2019 41741884 41741884 -SPLIT- Unpaid 82.75
Bill 09/20/2019 41714244 41714244 -SPLIT- Unpaid 129.68
Bill 09/20/2019 41845477 41845477 -SPLIT- Unpaid 44.34
Bill 09/30/2019 41928858 41928858 -SPLIT- Unpaid 116.59
Bill 09/30/2019 41935357 41935357 -SPLIT- Unpaid 18.94
Bill 09/30/2019 41952030 41952030 -SPLIT- Unpaid 64.77
Bill 09/30/2019 41966224 41966224 -SPLIT- Unpaid 88.34
Bill 09/30/2019 42000087 41966224 -SPLIT- Unpaid 92.26
Bill 09/30/2019 42073373 42073373 -SPLIT- Unpaid 86.14
Bill 09/30/2019 42110358 42110358 -SPLIT- Unpaid 275.73

Total Ingram Library Services 1,909.49

Joe Vincent Tranchina
Bill 09/18/2019 Jazz Trio 11-17-19 -SPLIT- Unpaid 450.00

Total Joe Vincent Tranchina 450.00

Joseph Bertolozzi Bridge Music Inc
Bill 09/20/2019 10-27-19 The Eiffel Tower as Musical Instrument 437.2 · Prof fees-Adult programs Unpaid 225.00

Total Joseph Bertolozzi Bridge Music Inc 225.00

Lisa Sinclair
Bill 09/20/2019 Emp Reim Mileage 435 · Travel/Conference Unpaid 40.02

Total Lisa Sinclair 40.02

Lock Around the Clock
Bill 09/23/2019 Oct. 2019 October 2019 Storage Unit Fee 469 · Service Contracts Unpaid 55.00

Total Lock Around the Clock 55.00

Cornwall Public Library
Warrant # 3

As of September 30, 2019

Page 2



Type Date Num Memo Split Paid Amount

Magna5
Bill 09/30/2019 5205737 5205737 431 · Telephone Unpaid 529.72

Total Magna5 529.72

Marangi Disposal
Bill 09/10/2019 Inv 99101019 September Service - Inv 99101019 469 · Service Contracts Paid 126.16

Total Marangi Disposal 126.16

Meaghan Doyle
Bill 09/23/2019 Empl Reimburse Workshop Travel and Conference Supplies ... -SPLIT- Unpaid 94.10

Total Meaghan Doyle 94.10

Orange Bank & Trust Cardmember Services
Bill 09/30/2019 Stmt dated 9-24-19 Stmt dated 9-24-19 -SPLIT- Unpaid 2,301.93

Total Orange Bank & Trust Cardmember Services 2,301.93

OverDrive, Inc.
Bill 09/30/2019 01052CO19189948 01052CO19189948 412.32 · E-Audiobooks -- Adult Unpaid 164.99
Bill 09/30/2019 01052DA19141573 01052DA19141573 -SPLIT- Unpaid 232.97
Bill 09/30/2019 01052CO19150338 01052CO19150338 412.32 · E-Audiobooks -- Adult Unpaid 372.99
Bill 09/30/2019 01052CO1915039 01052CO1915039 410.12 · Adult E Book Unpaid 543.99

Total OverDrive, Inc. 1,314.94

Paint with Hart
Bill 09/30/2019 11-9-19 Paint & Sip 437.2 · Prof fees-Adult programs Unpaid 375.00

Total Paint with Hart 375.00

Pamela A Hawks
Bill 09/30/2019 Employee Reimburse RUG Meeting and Travel 430.3 · Program supplies Unpaid 31.32

Total Pamela A Hawks 31.32

Paychex, Inc.
Bill 09/12/2019 20417208 41 Employee Usage $4/EA & Mobile $1/EA f... 437.1 · Prof fees-Office Paid 205.00
Bill 09/23/2019 2019092600 Small Business Package Payroll Processing ... 437.1 · Prof fees-Office Paid 591.00

Total Paychex, Inc. 796.00

Reader's Digest Large Print
Bill 09/20/2019 1 year renewal 1 year renewal - Exp 12/2020 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 21.95

Total Reader's Digest Large Print 21.95

Richard Feingold
Bill 09/23/2019 11-5-19 Escape From Behind Enemy Lines 11-5-19 437.2 · Prof fees-Adult programs Unpaid 250.00

Total Richard Feingold 250.00

Robert Milby
Bill 09/20/2019 Poetry for Autumn Poetry for Autumn and Halloween -SPLIT- Unpaid 200.00

Total Robert Milby 200.00

RPC Electric
Bill 09/23/2019 2413 Fastened Outlet Back In Wall Childrens Area 452 · Repairs to Building Unpaid 135.16

Total RPC Electric 135.16

Rupa Parikh
Bill 09/20/2019 Bollywood Dance Bollywood And Indian Dance 4 Session 10-1... -SPLIT- Unpaid 900.00

Total Rupa Parikh 900.00

Shop Rite Supermarkets Inc.
Bill 09/30/2019 9-15-19 Kitchen Supplies - Adult Programs 430.30 · Adult Unpaid 15.34
Bill 09/30/2019 8.26.19 Kitchen Supplies - Adult Programs 430.30 · Adult Unpaid 9.38
Bill 09/30/2019 9-4-19 Art Reception 430.3 · Program supplies Unpaid 27.60

Total Shop Rite Supermarkets Inc. 52.32

Steven Fowler
Bill 09/20/2019 Teen Writers Strike Teen Writers Strike Back 6 Session 9-10 to ... 437.5 · Prof fees-SRP Unpaid 240.00

Total Steven Fowler 240.00

Susan Vrana
Bill 09/30/2019 10-4-19 The Fall Pumpkin Craft 437.2 · Prof fees-Adult programs Unpaid 80.00

Cornwall Public Library
Warrant # 3

As of September 30, 2019

Page 3



Type Date Num Memo Split Paid Amount

Total Susan Vrana 80.00

The Family Handyman
Bill 09/20/2019 1 year renewal 1 year renewal - Exp 12/2020 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 16.98

Total The Family Handyman 16.98

The Hollywood Reporter
Bill 09/20/2019 2 Yr Renewal 2 year renewal - Cust # 04875738 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 199.00

Total The Hollywood Reporter 199.00

The New Yorker
Bill 09/30/2019 1 year renewal 1 year renewal - Exp 12/2020 Acct 823339239 413.6 · Serials Unpaid 149.99

Total The New Yorker 149.99

Times Herald Record
Bill 09/30/2019 833767 Roofing Grant ad for Bids 434 · Publicity & Printing Unpaid 74.12

Total Times Herald Record 74.12

Toshiba Financial Services
Bill 09/30/2019 Inv 395455140 Service for  9-16-19 to 10-16-19 469 · Service Contracts Unpaid 649.88

Total Toshiba Financial Services 649.88

United A/C Refrigeration, Inc
Bill 09/20/2019 42218 Date of Service  8/29/19 Phase Monitor 469 · Service Contracts Unpaid 225.00
Bill 09/25/2019 422239  Preventive Maintenance Service Date 9/25/19 469 · Service Contracts Unpaid 975.17

Total United A/C Refrigeration, Inc 1,200.17

Vanguard Cleaning Systems of the HV
Bill 09/18/2019 31238 September's Monthly Services 469 · Service Contracts Paid 1,190.00
Bill 09/23/2019 30923 August  Monthly Services 469 · Service Contracts Unpaid 1,190.00

Total Vanguard Cleaning Systems of the HV 2,380.00

Verizon
Bill 09/10/2019 652-121-949-0001-81 September's Monthly Services 431 · Telephone Paid 178.98

Total Verizon 178.98

Verizon Wireless
Bill 09/10/2019 9835239432 September 2019 431 · Telephone Paid 15.08

Total Verizon Wireless 15.08

Village of Cornwall-on-Hudson
Bill 09/30/2019 Acct 007472-000 Water Service 7-27-19 to 9-26-19 Water ser... 450 · Fuel/Utilities Unpaid 136.00

Total Village of Cornwall-on-Hudson 136.00

W.B. Mason
Bill 09/20/2019 202181660 202181660 -SPLIT- Unpaid 97.19
Bill 09/20/2019 202297582 202297582 430.2 · Office supplies Unpaid 18.99
Bill 09/30/2019 202642067 202642067 430.2 · Office supplies Unpaid 84.98

Total W.B. Mason 201.16

Younhee Shin
Bill 09/20/2019 10.20.19 Korean Traditional Cuisine Cooking Class 437.2 · Prof fees-Adult programs Unpaid 180.00

Total Younhee Shin 180.00

TOTAL 75,521.09

Cornwall Public Library
Warrant # 3

As of September 30, 2019

Page 4



 9:50 AM

 10/08/19

 Cash Basis

 Cornwall Public Library

 Profit & Loss by Class
 July 2017 through September 2019

Site Sign SAM Grant DASNY #7919 GEN/ELEC/LGT DASNY/SAM #9095 - roof Total Grants Capital Fund - Other

(Grants) (Grants) (Grants) (Capital Fund) (Capital Fund) Total Capital Fund

Income

EXPECTED FUNDS (not yet received) 50,000.00                                          9,050.00 200,000.00 259,050.00 513,009.16 * 772,059.16

2401 · Income from Investments -                                                     0.00 0.00 0.00 642.21 642.21

2760 · Grants -                                                     81,450.00 0.00 223,688.00 0.00 223,688.00

Total Income 50,000.00 90,500.00 200,000.00 432,738.00 513,651.37 946,389.37

Gross Profit 50,000.00                                          90,500.00 200,000.00 432,738.00 513,651.37 946,389.37

Expense

203b · Capital Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 352.98 9,700.27 10,053.25

430 · Supplies

430.2 · Office supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 285.12 0.00 285.12

430.3 · Program supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 145.65 0.00 145.65

430 · Supplies - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00

Total 430 · Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,430.77 0.00 12,430.77

431 · Telephone 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,594.94 0.00 3,594.94

452 · Repairs to Building 0.00 0.00 9,561.50 9,561.50 0.00 9,561.50

469 · Service Contracts 0.00 0.00 253.75 253.75 0.00 253.75

490 · Refund of PY Tax Assessment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

800 · Capital Expenditure 0.00 0.00 140,015.90 265,875.21 245,052.56 510,927.77

Total Expense 0.00 0.00 149,831.15 292,069.15 254,752.83 546,821.98

Net Income 50,000.00 90,500.00 50,168.85 140,668.85 258,898.54 399,567.39

*Capital Balance on 6/30/17

Current Capital Account Balance= $152,718.92

Open Grants $ spent Left to spend Notes

DASNY/SAM #9095 - roof ($200.000) $149,831.15 $50,168.85 Must be completed by 3/2021

Sign Grant (SAM - $50,000) $0.00 $50,000.00 Must be completed by 9/2021

DASNY #7919 GEN/ELEC/LGT ($181,000) $0.00 $181,000.00 Must BEGIN by 12/1/2019, completed by 6/2021

Schmitt ($13,000)

Skoufis ($15,000)

Current Capital Cash Flow & Open Grants

Will be reimbursed

$200,000.00

$50,000.00

$90,500 total ($9,050 more)

 Page 1 of 1



 9:38 AM

 10/08/19

 Cash Basis

 Cornwall Public Library

 Profit & Loss by Class
 July through September 2019

Capital Fund Memorial/Good Idea Arts Mid-Hudson Regrant Funds Friends Operating - Other

(Inc. Grants) Fund (Operating) (Operating) (Operating) Total Operating TOTAL

Income

2082 · Library Fines 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,636.87 7,636.87 7,717.43

2401 · Income from Investments 64.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.99 35.99 100.55

2706 · Gifts & Endowments 0.00 25.00 0.00 1,247.02 318.67 1,565.69 6,243.09

2760 · Grants 81,450.00 0.00 625.00 0.00 0.00 625.00 82,075.00

3840 · RCLS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,444.20 4,444.20 4,444.20

Total Income 81,514.56 25.00 625.00 1,247.02 12,435.73 14,307.75 100,580.27

Gross Profit 81,514.56 25.00 625.00 1,247.02 12,435.73 14,307.75 100,580.27

Expense

141 · Salary-Certified Librarian 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 61,556.43 61,556.43 61,556.43

142 · Salary-Clerical 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,875.61 113,875.61 113,875.61

143 · Salary-Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,346.17 1,346.17 1,346.17

203b · Capital Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 615.00 615.00 615.00

410 · Books 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,707.66 16,707.66 16,707.66

412 · Video/Music/Books on Tape 0.00 0.00 425.00 0.00 4,651.46 5,076.46 5,076.46

413 · Serials/Reference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,877.77 2,877.77 2,905.77

430 · Supplies

430.1 · Library supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 552.79 552.79 552.79

430.2 · Office supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 319.25 1,351.43 1,670.68 1,670.68

430.3 · Program supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,094.27 942.19 2,036.46 2,036.46

Total 430 · Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,413.52 2,846.41 4,259.93 4,259.93

431 · Telephone 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,171.78 2,171.78 2,171.78

433 · Postage 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 176.84 176.84 176.84

434 · Publicity & Printing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,190.41 1,190.41 1,190.41

435 · Travel/Conference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,166.78 1,166.78 1,166.78

437 · Professional Fees

437.1 · Prof fees-Office 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,326.00 4,326.00 4,326.00

437.2 · Prof fees-Adult programs 0.00 0.00 1,225.00 1,175.00 442.00 2,842.00 2,842.00

437.3 · Prof fees-YA programs 0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 150.00

437.5 · Prof fees-SRP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 240.00 240.00 240.00

437 · Professional Fees - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

Total 437 · Professional Fees 0.00 0.00 1,225.00 1,575.00 5,008.00 7,808.00 7,808.00

440 · Contracts w/ Books Co. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 374.95 374.95 374.95

450 · Fuel/Utilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,950.74 5,950.74 5,950.74

451 · Custodial Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 588.09 588.09 588.09

452 · Repairs to Building 6,770.50 149.20 0.00 0.00 718.35 718.35 7,638.05

454 · Building Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,111.00 3,111.00 3,111.00

455 · RCLS ANSER & Telecommunication 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,008.66 13,008.66 13,008.66

469 · Service Contracts 253.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,685.48 11,685.48 11,939.23

800 · Capital Expenditure 10,840.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,840.00

9010.8 · Retirement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -71.26 -71.26 -71.26

9030.8 · FICA/Medicare Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,351.32 15,351.32 15,351.32

9090.8 · Health Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,556.11 24,556.11 23,951.34

Total Expense 17,864.25 149.20 1,650.00 2,988.52 289,463.76 294,102.28 311,538.96

Net Income 63,650.31 -124.20 -1,025.00 -1,741.50 -277,028.03 -279,794.53 -210,958.69

 Page 1 of 1



 10:50 AM

 10/08/19

 Cash Basis

 Cornwall Public Library

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through September 2019

Budget

25% Jul - Sep 19 Budget $ Over Budget Full Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

2002 · Local Public Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,230,875.00 -1,230,875.00 0.0%

2082 · Library Fines 7,717.43 5,500.03 2,217.40 22,000.00 -14,282.57 35.08%

2401 · Income from Investments 100.55 125.00 -24.45 500.00 -399.45 20.11%

2706 · Gifts & Endowments 6,243.09 3,868.69 2,374.40 15,475.00 -9,231.91 40.34%

2760 · Grants 82,075.00 4,770.00 77,305.00 8,100.00 73,975.00 1,013.27%

3840 · RCLS 4,444.20

Total Income 100,580.27 14,263.72 86,316.55 1,276,950.00 -1,176,369.73 7.88%

Gross Profit 100,580.27 14,263.72 86,316.55 1,276,950.00 -1,176,369.73 7.88%

Expense

141 · Salary-Certified Librarian 61,556.43 55,070.30 6,486.13 204,548.00 -142,991.57 30.09%

142 · Salary-Clerical 113,875.61 118,669.30 -4,793.69 440,772.00 -326,896.39 25.84%

143 · Salary-Treasurer 1,346.17 1,346.12 0.05 5,000.00 -3,653.83 26.92%

203b · Capital Equipment 615.00 1,020.00 -405.00 4,080.00 -3,465.00 15.07%

410 · Books 16,707.66 16,197.81 509.85 65,358.00 -48,650.34 25.56%

411 · Film 0.00 0.00 0.00 658.00 -658.00 0.0%

412 · Video/Music/Books on Tape 5,076.46 7,021.00 -1,944.54 28,164.00 -23,087.54 18.03%

413 · Serials/Reference 2,905.77 2,350.50 555.27 10,514.00 -7,608.23 27.64%

430 · Supplies

430.1 · Library supplies 552.79 1,350.00 -797.21 5,400.00 -4,847.21 10.24%

430.2 · Office supplies 1,670.68 2,100.00 -429.32 8,400.00 -6,729.32 19.89%

430.3 · Program supplies 2,036.46 2,202.84 -166.38 8,811.00 -6,774.54 23.11%

Total 430 · Supplies 4,259.93 5,652.84 -1,392.91 22,611.00 -18,351.07 18.84%

431 · Telephone 2,171.78 2,125.00 46.78 8,506.00 -6,334.22 25.53%

433 · Postage 176.84 998.00 -821.16 4,000.00 -3,823.16 4.42%

434 · Publicity & Printing 1,190.41 1,875.00 -684.59 7,500.00 -6,309.59 15.87%

435 · Travel/Conference 1,166.78 1,378.00 -211.22 5,500.00 -4,333.22 21.21%

437 · Professional Fees

437.1 · Prof fees-Office 4,326.00 6,193.78 -1,867.78 24,775.00 -20,449.00 17.46%

437.2 · Prof fees-Adult programs 2,842.00 1,750.03 1,091.97 7,000.00 -4,158.00 40.6%

437.3 · Prof fees-YA programs 150.00 436.00 -286.00 1,750.00 -1,600.00 8.57%

437.4 · Prof fees-Juvenile 0.00 998.00 -998.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%

437.5 · Prof fees-SRP 240.00 750.00 -510.00 3,000.00 -2,760.00 8.0%

437.6 · Prof fees-Outreach 0.00 124.00 -124.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

437 · Professional Fees - Other 250.00

Total 437 · Professional Fees 7,808.00 10,251.81 -2,443.81 41,025.00 -33,217.00 19.03%

438 · Dues 0.00 340.00 -340.00 1,375.00 -1,375.00 0.0%

439 · Equipment Repair 0.00 49.97 -49.97 200.00 -200.00 0.0%

440 · Contracts w/ Books Co. 374.95 553.00 -178.05 2,200.00 -1,825.05 17.04%

450 · Fuel/Utilities 5,950.74 8,625.00 -2,674.26 34,500.00 -28,549.26 17.25%

451 · Custodial Supplies 588.09 600.00 -11.91 2,400.00 -1,811.91 24.5%

452 · Repairs to Building 7,638.05 3,345.00 4,293.05 13,380.00 -5,741.95 57.09%

454 · Building Insurance 3,111.00 12,383.00 -9,272.00 12,383.00 -9,272.00 25.12%

455 · RCLS ANSER & Telecommunication 13,008.66 13,609.25 -600.59 54,437.00 -41,428.34 23.9%

469 · Service Contracts 11,939.23 13,461.47 -1,522.24 53,846.00 -41,906.77 22.17%

490 · Refund of PY Tax Assessment 0.00 750.00 -750.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

800 · Capital Expenditure 10,840.00

9010.8 · Retirement -71.26 0.00 -71.26 61,522.00 -61,593.26 -0.12%

9030.8 · FICA/Medicare Expense 15,351.32 14,640.00 711.32 58,560.00 -43,208.68 26.22%

9060.8 · Workers' Comp 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,150.00 -8,150.00 0.0%

9090.8 · Health Insurance 23,951.34 30,690.28 -6,738.94 122,761.00 -98,809.66 19.51%

Total Expense 311,538.96 323,002.65 -11,463.69 1,276,950.00 -965,411.04 24.4%

Net Income -210,958.69 -308,738.93 97,780.24 0.00 -210,958.69 -605.31%

YTD Budget Full 2019-2020 Budget

 Page 1 of 1



Director’s Report September 2019 

9/1 Represented CPL at the Greater Cornwall Chamber of Commerce’s Annual Car Show.  Spoke with 

the public & Car Show attendees, sold raffle tickets & water for the Chamber. 

9/2 Labor Day, Library Closed 

9/3 In at noon, staffed Ref desk in evening;  Ran Dept. Heads Meeting; Worked on Last month’s 

Director’s report; Caught up on In Box & E-mail (was on vacation last week); Called architect about bid-

work for front doors. 

9/4 Meaghan and Pam went to training for the 2020 Census at RCLS; Picked up Bridge brochures from 

Bear Mountain Bridge offices. Worked with Pat on Board meeting materials.  

9/5 Spoke with M. Brennen about doors & electrical requirements, as well as lighting. Had meeting with 

a staff member about her position’s duties. 

9/6 Spoke with Andy of PowerGen, set appointment with him to look at our outdoor lighting 

9/9 Studied floor plan to try to make an Emergency evacuation plan; decided to get Dept. Heads involved 

in process. 

9/10 Met with Andy of PowerGen & Susanne to look at outdoor lighting & the timing system attached to 

it.  Hoping that Andy will come up with a way to modify our current outdoor building lights to LED. 

Emailed H. Sotland about tax check for CPL. Worked on updating “outreach policy,” made it homebound 

delivery policy to reflect what the program actually is. 

9/11 Attended Director’s Association meeting at RCLS. John Hurley of RCLS stated that, “Libraries with 

unsupported machines must pay for upgrading the Vipre license (for cyber security). Windows 7 is being 

discontinued on Jan.7, 2019,any computers using window 7 need to be upgraded or replaced, or they 

become a security threat.” Attended Webinar: Staying Relevant in the Library Profession in afternoon. 

Received answer from H. Sotland, that check would be mailed on Oct 11th; asked if we could get it 

sooner. 

9/12 in at noon. Received new NYS Library Standards from Grace @ RCS via Email.  Will post them to 

G-docs for Board. Attended Finance Committee meeting, and Board meeting. 

9/13 Met Jane H & Leslie Riley at Library at 7AM, drove to, and attended Legislative Breakfast. Spoke 

with Assemblyman Colin Schmitt & Senator James Skoufis, among others. 

9/15 Attended Early Voting Community Forum at CPL, to my relief found out that Library votes will not 

be affected by early voting. 

9/16 Sent a survey email out to Dept. Heads asking for choice of one of 2 days in Dec. that will be OK for 

staff training.  Began to plan a training day. 

9/17 Met with Pam & Meaghan to determine how many computers we should have dedicated to the 2020 

Census.  We decided on one, but have some questions for RCLS IT. Pam will get answers, and we will 

move forward from there. 

9/18 Met with Ben Harrell and Building/Garden Committee about his Eagle Scout Project.  We are asking 

that he widen the path from the parking lot to the Youth Services side portico, to make it handicapped 



accessible.  Ben came prepared with the number of pavers he will need, in addition to those next to the 

shed, and other figures for cost, etc. 

9/19 Ran Staff meeting. Later notified staff via email of possible noise from Cornwall’s Highway Dept. 

doing some loud construction tomorrow.  Ordered business cards with new logo for Brenda, via Vista 

Prints.  

9/20 Helped with pull list, due to no reference librarian on duty, and no second staff person at circulation 

desk.  Read “Preparing for the Digital Decennial Census,” hoping to be able to determine what the 

Library will need to participate in this initiative.  

9/21 Dealt with power outage: made phone calls & messaged Board, closed Library due to projected 

return of power (5:30PM) being past closing time.  Came to Library in evening to turn off lights & make 

sure alarms were set correctly. 

9/22 Went to CPL’s booth at Fall Fest: gave Gittel & Meaghan a short break, was there from 11:30-1PM.  

I would like to change how we staff our booth.  Having done this myself for several years, I do not think 

we should be asking 2 employees to work a ten hour day.  I would like to change it so that we close the 

Library that Sunday, and have circulation staff man the booth for three 3 1/3 hour shifts.  Gittel and 

Meaghan each can help with set up and/or break down, and each do one 3 ½ hour shift.  We can also have 

a page to help with set up, and another for breakdown.  We need to come up with a plan for RiverFest. 

9/23 Attended ANSER Committee meeting at RCLS.  Met Assemblyman Schmitt for Check Presentation 

Ceremony & took pictures with him, check & Mrs. Dean Satterly, among others. Left early (2:45), to see 

Doctor. 

9/24 Dealt with fallout from FB post of picture with Assemblyman Schmitt.    Had Gittel remove picture 

of all who attended presentation ceremony & replaced with picture of me receiving check from 

Assemblyman Schmitt, and one of him with Dean Satterly, who just turned 90 last week.  Spoke with Jon 

Case of the Democratic Party.  Plunged toilet in women’s room, handicapped stall.  Wrong day to wear 

sandals!  Covered Ref Desk 5-8. 

9/25 Set up for Friend’s Webinar: Connecting with Today's Volunteers, and attended with Jane, Leslie, 

Brenda, Martha, and a couple of others.  Brain stormed about Job Descriptions with them after the 

webinar, and wrote one up for Jane to look at. 

9/26 Attended 2 webinars: Managing Technology, and Digital Skills. Caught Pat up on a few things (she 

came back from vacation today).   

9/27 Emailed with policy committee. Rewrote “outreach policy.” Left early…not feeling well. 

9/30 Took webinar-Marketing the Library.  Worked with Pat to fix how ML did Civil Service paper work 

when she let a page go last summer.  Worked with Pat to end several pages’ probationary periods, after 

making sure with Meaghan that they are performing up to expectations.  Emailed Senator Skoufis about a 

check presentation for his Legislative Grant in aid.  Left message for Meghan Brennen about Bid 

documents for entry door replacement.  

 

Respectfully submitted 10/1/2019 CAD 

 



 

Adult Services Report: September 1-30, 2019 

(Submitted by Pamela Hawks, 10/1/19) 

 

PROGRAMMING 

October Adult/Teen Events Scheduled: Meet & Greet the Candidates Forum (10/1); Member’s Choice 

Book Group (10/2); College Admission and Financial Aid Program (10/3); Wood You Like a Fall 

Pumpkin Adult Craft Workshop – with the Town of Cornwall Rec Department (10/4); Medicare 101 

Workshop (10/5); Battle of Midway Lecture (10/7); Just Say Yes to Fruits & Vegetables sponsored by the 

Hudson Valley Food Bank (10/8); Bollywood Dance Series (10/8, 10/5, 10/22, 10/29); Breast Cancer 

Education (10/11); AARP Defensive Driving Workshop (10/12); Teen Tech Tutoring (10/14); Teen Book 

Club (10/15); Mystery Book Group (10/15); Out & About Book Group (10/15); Poetry Reading & Open 

Mic (10/16); Taste of Korea Food & Culture Presentation (10/20); Understanding Diabetes Prevention 

and Self-Management (10/23); Book Chat and Chocolate (10/24).  

The Great Give Back (10/19): this joint program with Adult Services and Youth Services is a New York 

State-wide community service initiative. The mission of The Great Give Back is to provide a day of 

opportunities for the patrons of the Public Libraries of New York State to participate in meaningful, 

service-oriented experiences. The library effort (spearheaded by Meaghan Doyle) now has 9 

organizations that will be on hand to sign up volunteers.  We are also hosting a coat drive (run by T.U.T.) 

and a diaper drive.  We will be handing out UNICEF boxes for trick-or-treating as well. With the new 

volunteer requirements required by the state for receiving a High School Diploma, this volunteer fair is of 

critical importance to the community. 

 

REFERENCE 

Ref Stats (previous month in parentheses): 

Circulation: 182 (163); Directional:  10 (13); ILL Pulls: 1,556 (1,442); Reader Advisory: 13 (24); 

Tech Assists: 111 (121); Reservations: 4 (7); Printing: 134 (106); Phone: 90 (83); Chargers: 10 

(10); Computer Guest Passes: 85 (42); Notary: 38 (39); Ref. Q’s: 309 (348); Outside the system 

ILL requests: 8 (14). 

Database Stats (previous month in parentheses): 

Novel List Plus: 7 (9); Novel List PlusK-8: 2 (1); Master FILE Premier 1 (0); Gale: 0 (0); Gale 

Virtual Ref. Library: 0 (0); Ancestry: 174 (220); New York Times Digital: 103 (84) 

PC Usage: Adult Area: 813 (878)      Local History (Microfilm): 12 (13) 

Children’s Area: 56 (59)       Laptops: 5 (4)  TOTAL PC USAGE: 886 

(954) 

WIFI Usage: 4,341 (4,691) 

MEETINGS ATTENDED: 

9/4: Digital Census Preparation Training at RCLS 

9/25: Reference Users Group (RUG) meeting at Warwick 



 

YA LIBRARIAN REPORT (Meaghan Doyle) 

Meetings attended: 

9/4 Digital Census Preparation Training @RCLS 

9/12 Mock Printz Committee @ Goshen 

 

 Census Training: Day-long pilot class at RCLS, put on by an organization that is developing a 

training curriculum for training people about managing the 2020 Census response.  It was an 

interesting insight into what concerns people might have about the Census in general, and how to 

be prepared to alleviate or address those concerns. 

 

 Great Give Back Update:  9 Organizations are confirmed to participate by hosting tables, we have 

teen volunteers signed up to help out, and things are getting ready.    

 

 RCLS Battle of the Books –I made a digital scorekeeping and bracket system, which was well 

received. Bracket was still small, but also better than printed posters, and could be updated when 

a team dropped out after the bracket poster had been printed. Scorekeeping worked smoothly and 

was easier to do and see. I worked closely with Scorekeeper Matt Pfisterer, director of 

Middletown Thrall Library, to keep the bracket updated between matches. 

 

 Cornwall Library had two teams participate in the Battle of the Books. They performed well, and 

each won their first match, but then, due to the luck of the draw, faced each other.  Our team unity 

was on display as everyone had their green battle shirt and green sunglasses.   

 

 I found a Pulitzer Award Winning Book Covers Jigsaw Puzzle, which we left in the smart space, 

and patrons have spent as little as 15 seconds and as much as 60 minutes sorting and placing 

pieces while talking with strangers across generations. I have heard inquiries from people of all 

ages about when will we put out a new puzzle. 

 

 The Out and About Book Club has been expanding its demographic. As before, we hope to target 

a relatively younger group, but since removing the age limit from our marketing materials, we 

have had a few older participants. These participants have been friendly and insightful and it has 

been nice to have a few new “regulars.”  Leo’s, as always, is one of the best locations for our 

group, as the atmosphere lends itself to group discussion, it’s never too loud or quiet, and the staff 

seems to get a kick out of our group. This month, we read The Glass Universe, which is about the 

women who worked at Harvard in the late 1800s/early 1900s counting and mapping the stars. 

There was much discussion in the book about how they were able to identify and distinguish the 

books using spectroscopy, and so one of our book group participants brought in special glasses 

for us all to try that break up the light into the different wavelengths. See the library’s Instagram 

picture!  

 



 Fall Festival: I spent the entire day at the Cornwall Fall Festival. We sold Adult, YA and 

Children’s books and DVDs on behalf of the Friends, and gave out candy, tote bags and lots of 

flyers and calendars. We chatted with many of our patrons and potential patrons. It was a long, 

hot day, and a lot of work to plan and prepare, set up and break down the booth and sit there all 

day.  Plans for staffing booths at all-day outreach events need to be discussed before the 

next event. 

 

 I requested input from the RCLS listserv about Button Makers, and based upon feedback and 

research, I submitted a Good Idea fund request for a Button Maker from American Button 

Machines and accessories to be used at programs and outreach activities.  

 

 TUT Meeting:  The Teens met and discussed the Great Give Back, and signed up to help out.  

They discussed what it means to be a volunteer, and brainstormed some activities we might do 

over the course of the upcoming year.  They are concerned about doing enough and keeping track 

of volunteer hours to comply with the high school community service requirement, and so Youth 

Services staff might wish to evaluate how/where we keep track so we can validate hours for them. 

The younger teens are quite rambunctious and love being in the library after we close. When we 

can keep them on task, they are a great group of volunteers.  

 

 Game Night: 3 enthusiastic teens came, and were excited to know when would be the next one. 

Unfortunately, there was no room in the October calendar, so they will have to wait until 

November.  

September 2019 Monthly Report: Rosaleen Leahy 10/1/2019 

Program Attendance: Member’s Choice Book Club – 7; Art Reception – 32; Breakneck Annie Concert – 

65; Creative Writers – 8, 8, 7, 7; Tea & a Classic – 15; Atrial Fibrillation Lecture – 57; NYS Early Voting 

Forum – 23; Out & About Book Club – 7; Mystery Book Group – 12; Storm King Lecture – 55 

Faces of Rembrandt Lecture – 39; Republican Candidate Forum – 37; Book Chat – 11 

Total # of Programs: 16   Total Attendance: 390   Other Room Use: Board Meeting, Staff Meeting 

The application for an Arts Mid-Hudson grant, in the amount of $3018, was submitted on Thursday, 

September 12. The project title is, “Cornwall Artists, Writers, Musicians, & Performers”. The goal is to 

introduce some of our new, very talented, residents to the community and to celebrate some of our long-

time, talented residents. The artists/performers who have agreed to participate are Paul Gould (artist), 

Julia Dahl (writer), Aaron Gaines (Shakespearean Actor) and Mara Davi (Broadway Musical actress). 

Upcoming programs, in October, include:Bollywood & Traditional Indian Dance (a 2019 AMH Grant 

Program & Friends funded); Poetry Reading and Open Mic with Poet Laureate Robert Milby (a 2019 

AMH Grant Program & Friends funded); Korean Spirit & Culture Promotion Project Great Decisions 

(Friends funded); The Eiffel Tower as Musical Instrument with composer Joseph Bertolozzi (a 2019 

AMH Grant Program) 

Music Collection:A display has been put together, honoring the great opera singer, Jessye Norman, who 

passed away this week. 



 

PROGRAM 

NAME: DATE: CHILDREN: ADULTS: MIXED: TEENS: 

ATTENDANCE 

TOTAL 
       

LAPSIT-9:30 
9/6, 9/13, 
9/20, 9/27 32 34     66 

LAPSIT-10:30 
9/6, 9/13, 
9/20, 9/27 31 35     66 

TODDLERS-9:30 
9/4, 9/11, 

9/18, 9/25 45 47     92 

TODDLERS-10:30 
9/4, 9/11, 

9/18, 9/25 44 36     80 

CIRCLE TIME 
9/5, 9/12, 
9/19, 9/26 31       31 

PRE-K 
9/5, 9/12, 
9/19, 9/26 39       39 

BATTLE OF THE 

BOOKS 9/8   6   8 14 

PJ ST 9/16 13 7     20 

POLLINATOR 

TOURS 

9/16, 

9/17 67 8     75 

CHATTERBOOKS 9/17 7       7 

LOOM KNITTING 9/17     9   9 

DOG TALES 9/23 8       8 

ART 

AFTERNOON 9/26 11       11 

TEEN WRITERS 

9/10, 

9/26       8 8 

T.U.T. 9/27       16 16 

LEGO 9/28 9 5     14 

SPANISH STORY 

TIME 9/28 5 2     7 

FAMILY MOVIE 9/30 3 2     5 

BOOK/SNACK 9/30 1       1 

READZZA 9/30 6       6 

MUZZY 

SESSIONS   4       4 

     TOTAL: 579 

MEETINGS & 

OUTREACH: DATE: ATTENDEE:     
Census Workshop 

@ RCLS 9/4 Meaghan 
 

   
Battle of the Books 9/8 Liz, Lisa, Meaghan    
SLJ Webinar - New 

Non-Fic 9/10 Liz 
 

   
SLJ Webinar - New 

GN 9/11 Liz 
 

   
Mock Printz Awards 9/12 Meaghan  

   



CLOUSC Mtg. 

(Goshen) 9/23 Liz 
 

   
Dept. Head Mtg 9/17 Liz  

   

Staff Mtg 9/19 Liz, Rebecca & Meaghan 
   

Fall Festival 9/22 Meaghan  
   

 
  

 
   

QUESTIONS @ THE 

DESK: 

 

  

 

   
Reference 286  

 
   

Circulation 111  
 

   
Tech 21  

 
   

iPads 21  
 

   
Telephone 46  

 
   

Programs 65      
Muzzy 2      

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

       

       

       

       
 

 

 

Reflections:   
- Sunday, September 8, Cornwall Public Library was 

represented by two teams of teens at the RCLS Battle of The 

Books. The teens played 7 times, competing with 16 other 

libraries. 
- The new, Books to Go bags (themed canvas bags 

containing 5 books - fiction and non-fiction - that can be 

read for a story time) have been very well received, literally 

jumping off the shelf.  The science and literacy themed 

backpacks are also a hit. 
- Much preparation has gone into The Great Give Back that 

will be hosted by our Teen UnderclassmenTeam on October 

19. The teens have suggested ideas to flesh out a 

community service fair and coat drive for Newburgh 

Ministry and will be teaching loom knitting and providing 

general assistance on that Saturday.  
- Over 80 "citizen scientists" visited the pollinator garden 

learning about composting, collecting seeds, and observing 

a variety of plants, bees, caterpillars, butterflies, mantis and 

dragonflies. 
- Dog Tales is an opportunity for readers to 

build confidence by reading to service dogs. Very happy to 

have Hudson Valley Paws for a Cause volunteers helping us 

with this on-going program. 
- Rebecca has been working to freshen up the Parenting 

section, ordering lots of new titles and updated editions. 



 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Program Attendance - September

CHILDREN: ADULTS: MIXED: TEENS:

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Attendance Totals - September



Approved by Board of Trustees ___________ 
 

                   
 
 
 

Holiday Schedule 2020 
 
 
Closed Holidays 
 
Wednesday, January 1  New Year’s Day (CLOSED)    
Friday, April 10                Good Friday (CLOSE at 1:00)   
Sunday, April 12  Easter Sunday (CLOSED) 
Monday, May 25  Memorial Day (CLOSED)     
Saturday, July 4   Independence Day (CLOSED)    
Monday, September 7  Labor Day (CLOSED)     
Wednesday, November 25 Day before Thanksgiving (CLOSE at 1:00)    
Thursday, November 26  Thanksgiving Day (CLOSED)    
Thursday, December 24  Christmas Eve Day (CLOSED)    
Friday, December 25               Christmas Day (CLOSED)     
Wednesday, December 31 New Year’s Eve Day (CLOSE at 1:00)     
 
Open for the following Federal Holidays: 
 
Monday, January 20  Martin Luther King, Jr.’s Birthday 
Monday, February 17  Washington’s Birthday (Presidents Day) 
Monday, October 12        Columbus Day Observance 
Tuesday, November 11  Veterans Day 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised Sept 2019 



33393 

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR 
MEETING MINIMUM PUBLIC 

LIBRARY STANDARDS IN NEW 
YORK STATE 

 

Prepared by the New York State Library and the 
Public Library System Directors Organization 

(PULISDO) 

The University of the State of New York 
State Education Department 

New York State Library 
Division of Library Development 

October 2018 



ii 

THE UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Regents of The University 

BETTY A. ROSA, Chancellor, B.A., M.S. in Ed., M.S. in Ed, M.Ed., Ed.D……………………..Bronx  
T. ANDREW BROWN, Vice Chancellor, B.A., J.D………………………………………………………. Rochester  
ROGER TILLES, B.A., J.D…………………………………………………………………………………………. Great Neck  
LESTER W. YOUNG, Jr., B.S., M.S., Ed.D………………………………………………………………….. Beechurst  
CHRISTINE D. CEA, B.A, M.A, Ph.D…………………………………………………………………………. Staten Island  
WADE S. NORWOOD, B.A……………………………………………………………………………………….. Rochester  
KATHLEEN M. CASHIN, B.S., M.S., Ed.D…………………………………………………………………… Brooklyn  
JAMES E. COTTRELL, B.S., M.D……………………………………………………………………………….. New York  
JOSEPHINE VICTORIA FINN, B.A., J.D…………………………………………………………………………. Monticello  
JUDITH CHIN, M.S. in Ed………………………………………………………………………………………… Little Neck  
BEVERLY L. OUDERKIRK, B.S. in Ed., M.S. in Ed…………………………………………………………. Morristown  
CATHERINE COLLINS, R.N., N.P., B.S., M.S. in Ed., Ed.D……………………………………………… Buffalo  
JUDITH JOHNSON, B.A., M.A., C.A.S………………………………………………………………………… New Hempstead 
NAN EILEEN MEAD, B.A………………………………………………………………………………………….. Manhattan  
ELIZABETH S. HAKANSON, A.S., M.S., C.A.S………………………………………………………………. Syracuse  
LUIS O. REYES, B.A., M.A., Ph.D. ……………………………………………………………………………. New York  
SUSAN W. MITTLER, B.S., M.S. ........................................................................ ............ Ithaca 

Commissioner of Education 
President of the University of the State of New York 

MARYELLEN ELIA 

Executive Deputy Commissioner 
ELIZABETH R. BERLIN 

Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Cultural Education 
MARK SCHAMING 

The Office of Cultural Education 
New York State Library 

Albany, New York 12230 
www.nysl.nysed.gov 

The State Education Department does not discriminate on the basis of age, color, religion, creed, disability, marital status, 
veteran status, national origin, race, gender, genetic predisposition or carrier status, or sexual orientation in its educational 
programs, services and activities. Portions of this publication can be made available in a variety of formats, including braille, 
large print or audio tape, upon request. Inquiries concerning this policy of nondiscrimination should be directed to the 
Department’s Office for Diversity and Access, Room 530, Education Building, Albany, NY 12234.  



iii 

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING MINIMUM PUBLIC LIBRARY STANDARDS IN 
NEW YORK STATE 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................ 1 

STANDARD #1: WRITTEN BYLAWS ........................................................................................................... 3 

STANDARD #2: LONG-RANGE PLAN ....................................................................................................... 10 

STANDARD #3: REPORT TO THE COMMUNITY ...................................................................................... 14 

STANDARD #4: WRITTEN POLICIES ........................................................................................................ 18 

STANDARD #5: WRITTEN BUDGET ......................................................................................................... 22 

STANDARD #6: EVALUATING EFFECTIVENESS ....................................................................................... 24 

STANDARD #7: HOURS ........................................................................................................................... 28 

STANDARD #8: MAINTAINING A FACILITY TO MEET COMMUNITY NEEDS .......................................... 30 

STANDARD #9: PROGRAMMING (NEW!) ............................................................................................... 33 

STANDARD #10: TECHNOLOGY TO MEET COMMUNITY NEEDS ........................................................... 35 

STANDARD #11: PROVIDES ACCESS TO CURRENT LIBRARY INFORMATION ........................................ 38 

STANDARD #12 EMPLOYS A PAID DIRECTOR ........................................................................................ 40 

STANDARD #13: TECHNOLOGY TRAINING (NEW!) ................................................................................ 42 

STANDARD #14: COMMUNITY PARTNERS (NEW!) ................................................................................ 44 

APPENDIX A: LAWS AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO MINIMUM PUBLIC LIBRARY STANDARDS IN 

NEW YORK STATE ................................................................................................................................... 46 

APPENDIX B: STANDARDS FOR REGISTRATION, effective August 1, 2018 ........................................... 47 



iv 



1 

Helpful Information for Meeting Minimum Public Library Standards In 
New York State 

INTRODUCTION 
A New York State Library and Public Library System Directors Organization (PULISDO) Work 
Group created this publication, Helpful Information for Meeting Minimum Public Library 
Standards In New York State, as a guide for librarians, library directors, trustees, and library 
system personnel in understanding the why, what and how of each standard. 

Success for all libraries, with improved service for library users, is one of the highest priorities of 
both the State Library and PULISDO.  This publication, previously revised in 2002, addresses 
how library boards and directors can achieve both the letter and the spirit of the minimum 
public library standards.   

The revised Helpful Information for Meeting Minimum Public Library Standards In New York 
State covers amendments to existing standards and three new minimum library standards 
that were adopted by the Board of Regents in July 2018. Amendments became effective as a 
permanent rule on August 1, 2018.  The current standards will expire on December 31, 2020 
and all “new” updated standards will take effect as of January 1, 2021. Standards were last 
updated over twenty years ago, and amendments and additions update and clarify language 
related to the existing standards and reflect changes in governance, technology and library use 
that have occurred over the last twenty years. Major amendments include: 

• Updates to the standards related to library bylaws, a long-range plan, an annual report,
annual budget, and the evaluation of programs, services, and collections.

• Addition of language to the existing standards to clarify that current information about
the library, its governance and its services should be available to the community in both
print and online.

• Addition of language to the existing standard about maintaining a library facility that
addresses community needs and to clarify the need for adequate data infrastructure.

• Updates to the current language in the standard related to providing equipment,
technology and internet connectivity to address community needs, to include the need
for a circulation system that facilitates access to the local library collection and other
library catalogs.

• Addition of three new standards—one related to library programing, one related to
annual technology training for library staff, and one related to establishing and
maintaining partnerships with other education, cultural and community organizations.

• Providing for a two-year implementation period to allow libraries sufficient time to
obtain additional resources or expertise to achieve compliance.

The Board of Regents sets standards for public and association libraries under Education Law, 
Section 254.  Registration (Regulations of the Commissioner of Education Section 90.1), which is 
certified by the State Education Department, means that a chartered (incorporated) library 

https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/254
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/254
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I36517e95c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)


2  

meets the minimum standards (Regulations of the Commissioner of Education Section 90.2) for 
its size and is thereby qualified to receive and expend state and local public funds. Libraries are 
registered following Regents incorporation by charter. Once registered, each library provides an 
annual assurance that minimum standards are met through their annual report to the New York 
State Library. 

This publication is designed to assist libraries in meeting the minimum standards and provide a 
framework for system staff in working directly with member libraries.  

Many thanks to library leaders from across the state who contributed ideas and suggestions for 
this revised edition. 

 

Members of the Work Group 
Anja Bouchard, Clinton-Essex-Franklin Library System 

Mary Beth Farr, New York State Library 

Ron Kirsop, Pioneer Library System 

Jane Minotti, New York State Library 

Frank Rees, New York State Library 

Grace Riario, Ramapo Catskill Library System 

Rebekkah Smith Aldrich, Mid-Hudson Library System 

Amanda Travis, Onondaga County Public Library 

Emma Trevena, New York State Library 

Mary Anne Waltz (Work Group Leader), New York State Library 

Questions about this publication and its contents may be directed to Mary Anne Waltz, Public 
Library Services Team Leader, Division of Library Development, NYSL at 518-474-1479 or at 
MaryAnne.Waltz@nysed.gov. 

https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I36517e98c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1


3  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #1: WRITTEN BYLAWS 
 

Each library...is governed by written bylaws which define the structure and governing 
functions of the library board of trustees, and which shall be reviewed and re-approved by 
the board of trustees at least once every five years or earlier if required by law. 

 
WHY ARE BYLAWS NECESSARY?  
Written bylaws clarify the rules by which the board of trustees operates and governs the 
library. They set the procedures for the smooth running of board business. As membership on 
the board changes over time, specifics and agreements may be forgotten. Bylaws are essential 
to assuring continuity and preventing disagreements and misunderstandings. Bylaws need to be 
reviewed and updated at least once every five years or earlier if required by law. 

WHAT IS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE BOARD'S BYLAWS AND THE LIBRARY'S CHARTER? 
The bylaws are the rules and procedures by which the Board of Trustees functions. The charter 
is a legal document from the Board of Regents that incorporates the library, making it an 
education corporation that must meet certain standards of operation. The bylaws must be 
consistent with enabling legislation (if applicable), the current charter, Education Law, and the 
Education Commissioner's Regulations. 

WHAT DO BYLAWS TYPICALLY CONTAIN? 
Bylaws usually cover such items as type of library and service area; number of trustees; terms 
of office of trustees; officers, duties and responsibilities; meeting frequency (e.g., third 
Monday) and rules (e.g., what is a quorum, order of business, filling vacancies on the board, 
trustee attendance, etc.); committees (e.g., standing committees, how committee members are 
appointed, ad-hoc committee procedures, etc.); conflict of interest; the library director’s duties 
and responsibilities; and amendment procedures. 

TRUSTEE ATTENDANCE AND THE BYLAWS? 
One of the responsibilities of every trustee is to attend Board meetings and to be engaged in 
the decision-making process. Education Law Section 226 states that “If any trustee shall fail to 
attend three consecutive meetings without excuse accepted as satisfactory by the trustees, he 
shall be deemed to have resigned, and the vacancy shall be filled.”  

 

HELPFUL TIP: Add a sentence or two to the bylaws on how a Board will handle a situation 
where a trustee is not fulfilling his/her duties and responsibilities. For example, a Board 
member who missed 50% of Board meetings within a year without providing an excuse will be 

https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/226


4  

asked to submit their resignation. It is up to each Board to define what is an acceptable 
“excuse” in their bylaws. 

 

WHAT DOES THE CHARTER CONTAIN? 
The charter typically covers such items as name and location of the education corporation (in 
this case, the library); the names of the board members at the time of incorporation; the date 
the Regents approved the charter; the number or range of trustees and the length of their 
terms. The charter should also include the library's service area; the IRS 501(c)(3) language for 
not-for-profit corporations; language designating the Commissioner of Education as an agent of 
the corporation upon whom process in any action or proceeding against it may be served; and 
amendments. To change any of these elements requires a charter amendment approved by 
the Board of Regents. These elements may not be changed by the Board in the bylaws. 

HELPFUL TIP: If the library’s current charter does state a range of trustees (e.g., 5 to 15), 
the Board can change the number of trustees at any time by amending the bylaws. However, if 
the charter states a specific number of trustees (e.g., 7 trustees), the Board may not change the 
bylaws without amending the charter first.  It is advisable to amend the charter to state a range 
of trustees.  Libraries should first contact their library system to discuss any proposed charter-
related actions. Then either the library or library system should contact State Library staff who 
will provide appropriate forms and assist in their proper completion. 
 

HELPFUL TIP: It is also advisable that a Library with a range in its charter institutionalize a 
vote at the Annual Board organizational meeting to confirm the number of trustees for the 
coming year. 

 

SHOULD BYLAWS BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY? 
 Yes.  Current, board-approved bylaws are required to be publicly available online (See Standard 
11: Provides access to current library information) and the library should also have printed 
copies available for public distribution.  Online and printed bylaws provide the community with 
transparency and accountability about library operations. 

 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 
Below is a typical example of library bylaws. Consult the Library System for further advice or 
assistance in developing bylaws.  

 

http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/charter/index.html
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/charter/index.html
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/ldroster.htm#pls


5  

 

HELPFUL TIP: Provide a copy of the Library Bylaws to new trustees and ask them to review 
them.  Many successful boards also schedule a formal new trustee orientation with the Library 
Director and the Board President that includes a Bylaws review on the orientation agenda. 

 

SAMPLE BYLAWS (from the Handbook for Library Trustees of New York State: 2018 Edition, p. 90-94) 

The material below is presented for illustrative purposes only. Each library should adapt their 
bylaws to suit their particular needs and circumstances. Bylaws must align with the library’s 
charter and enabling legislation (if applicable). These bylaws are based on a typical association 
library legal structure.  

    

Mission Statement 
(insert the Library's Mission Statement) 

    

The _________Library exists to provide quality service to the residents of _____________ in an 
open and non-judgmental environment with free access to library materials in a variety of 
formats. 

    

Preamble 
    

The Board of Trustees (hereinafter designated as the “Board”) of The____________ Library, a 
corporation created under a charter granted under Section 253 of the New York State 
Education Law by the Board of Regents (or Secretary of State) of the State of New York, 
dated________, shall be governed by the laws of New York State, the regulations of the 
Commissioner of Education and by the following bylaws. 

    

Bylaws 
    

1. NAME OF ORGANIZATION 
1. The name of the organization shall be the ___________________Library 

2. PURPOSE 
1. The purpose of the organization is to provide superior library service to the 

residents, adults and children, of the communities of _____________. 

http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/index.html


6  

3. FISCAL 
1. The fiscal year of the library shall be the _________ year. 

4. BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
1. The library shall be governed by a Board of Trustees. The Board shall consist of 

_______ members, elected for terms of ______ years each. (Insert any particular 
language regarding areas of representation or method of election. The number of 
trustees must conform with the Library’s charter.) Newly elected members will 
take office at the first meeting following the annual meeting. 

2. Eligibility for office shall be limited to adults residing or owning property within 
the geographical limits of the library.  

3. Absence from three consecutive meetings shall constitute automatic dismissal 
from the Board unless the Board defers this dismissal by majority vote. The 
President shall inform the absent Board Member in writing that he/she is no 
longer on the Board. If dismissal is deferred by Board action, the President shall 
inform the absent Board Member in writing the conditions of this deferral. 

4. No member shall serve for more than two consecutive three-year terms. (insert 
local restrictions) 

5. Any vacancy shall be filled by special election by the remaining members of the 
Board for the remainder of the term of that particular position. (Refer to charter 
for local provisions) 

6. The Board may remove a Trustee for misconduct, incapacity, neglect of duty or 
refusal to carry into effect the library’s educational purpose as provided in 
Education Law 226; subdivision 8. 

7. Each Trustee shall have one vote, irrespective of office held. 
8. A Trustee must be present at a meeting to have his/her vote counted. 
9. A majority of the whole Board (including vacancies) is required for any motion to 

pass. 
10. All actions of the Board shall be of the Board as a unit. No  Board member shall 

act on behalf of the Board, on any matter, without prior approval of the Board. 
No Board member by virtue of his/her office shall exercise any administrative 
responsibility with respect to the library nor, as an individual, command the 
services of any library employee. 

5. OFFICERS 
1. The officers of the Board shall be the President, Vice-President, Secretary and 

Treasurer, elected annually by the Board at the annual meeting. These officers 
shall serve for a period of one year or until their successors shall have been duly 
elected. 

2. The duties of such officers shall be as follows: 



7  

1. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, authorize calls 
for any special meetings, appoint all committees, execute all documents 
authorized by the Board, serve as an ex-officio voting member of all 
committees, and generally perform all duties associated with that office. 

2. The Vice President, in the event of the absence or disability of the 
President, or of a vacancy in that office, shall assume and perform the 
duties and functions of the President. 

3. The Secretary shall keep a true and accurate record of all meetings of the 
Board, shall issue notice of all regular and special meetings, and shall 
perform such other duties as are generally associated with that office. 

4. The Treasurer (Many public libraries must appoint an independent 
Treasurer who is not a member of the Board. See chapter on Board 

Organization: Handbook for Library Trustees of New York State: 2018 Edition,) shall be the 
disbursing officer of the Board and shall perform such duties as generally 
devolve upon the office. In the absence or inability of the Treasurer, 
his/her duties shall be performed by such other members of the Board as 
the Board may designate. 

6. DIRECTOR 
1. The Board shall appoint a Director who shall be the chief executive officer of the 

library corporation and shall have charge of the administration of the library 
under the direction and review of the Board. The Director shall be responsible 
for the care of the buildings and equipment; for the employment and direction 
of the staff; for the efficiency of the library's service to the public; and for the 
operation of the library under the financial conditions contained in the annual 
budget. 

2. The Director shall render and submit to the Board reports and recommendations 
of such policies and procedures, which, in the opinion of the Director, will 
improve efficiency and quality of library service. The Director shall attend all 
Board meetings except the portion of the meeting at which the director's 
appointment or salary is to be discussed or decided. 

7. COMMITTEES 
1. A nominating committee shall be appointed by the President three months prior 

to the Annual Meeting who will present a slate of officers and names of 
candidates for new trustees. Additional nominations may be made from the 
floor. 

2. Committees for specific purposes may be appointed by the President. Such 
committees shall serve until the completion of the work for which they were 
appointed. 

http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/chapter05.htm#treasurer
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/chapter05.htm#treasurer
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/chapter05.htm#treasurer
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/index.html


8  

3. All committees shall make a progress report to the Board at each of its meetings. 
4. No committee will have other than advisory powers unless, by suitable action of 

the Board, it is granted specific   power to act. 
5. The President shall be, ex officio, a member of all committees. 

 
 

 
8. MEETINGS 

1. Meetings shall be held each month, the date and hour to be set by the Board. 
Written notice of all meetings shall be mailed by the Secretary to each member 
at least five days before the meeting. 

2. A special meeting of the Board may be called at any time by the President or 
upon the request of three members   for a specific purpose. No business 
may be transacted at such special meeting except the stated business. 

3. The Annual Meeting shall be held in ___________ of each year. The business 
transacted at this meeting shall   include the election of new trustees 
and new officers. 

4. The operating and financial reports for the previous year shall be presented at 
the regular meeting in January. 

5. The preliminary budget for the subsequent calendar year, required for 
submission to the ___________voters,   shall be presented at the 
regular meeting in ________. 

6. The final budget for the subsequent calendar year shall be presented for 
approval at the regular meeting in   __________. 

7. A simple majority of the whole Board (including vacancies) shall constitute a 
quorum for the conducting of all business. A majority of the whole Board 
(including vacancies) is required for any motion to pass. If a quorum is not 
present at a regular meeting, the attending members may set a date for another 
meeting to be held within one week, and the presiding officer shall notify the 
absent members of this specially called meeting. 

8. The order of business for regular meetings shall include, but not be limited to, 
the following items which   shall be covered in the sequence shown 
unless circumstances make an altered order more efficient: 

1. Call to Order and roll call of members 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Adoption of Agenda 
4. Approval of prior Meeting Minutes 
5. Period for public expression 



9  

6. Correspondence 
7. Personnel Actions Report 
8. Treasurer's report 

■ Report of receipts and disbursements 
■ Warrants 
■ Presentation of projected cash flow 

9. Director's and Department Heads’ reports 
10. Committee Reports 
11. Old Business 
12. New Business 
13. Period for public expression 
14. Dates of future board meetings 
15. Other Business 
16. Adjournment 

 
9. AMENDMENTS 

1. Amendments to these Bylaws may be proposed at any regular meeting and shall 
be voted upon at the next regular meeting. Written notice of the proposed 
amendment or amendments shall be sent to all absent members at least ten 
days prior to the voting session. A simple majority of the whole Board (including 
vacancies) shall be sufficient for adoption of an amendment. 

2. Any rule or resolution of the Board, whether contained in these Bylaws or 
otherwise, may be suspended temporarily in connection with business at hand, 
but such suspension, to be valid, may be taken only at a meeting at which two-
thirds of the members of the Board shall be present and two-thirds of those 
present shall so approve. 

10. PROCEDURE 
1. All procedures not specified herein shall be in accord with Robert's Rules of 

Order, Revised. 
Approved by The _____________ Library Board of Trustees 

Dated: _________. 

 
  



10  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #2: LONG-RANGE PLAN 
 

Each library. . . has a community-based, board-approved, written long-range plan of 
service developed by the library board of trustees and staff. 

 
WHY IS A LONG-RANGE PLAN IMPORTANT FOR EVERY LIBRARY? 
Every library needs a long-range plan as a formal document to: 

● Provide information about the community and library to use in decision-making; 
● Clarify for board, staff, and community the role of the library in the community; 
● Evaluate the usefulness and quality of specific services and activities; 
● Assist in preparing for change (dropping old services or adding new ones); 
● Establish priorities for the allocation of resources; 
● Document the need for sustainable funding. 

 
WHAT IS A LONG-RANGE PLAN? DOES IT DIFFER FROM A STRATEGIC PLAN? 
A long-range plan and a strategic plan both involve investigating the library's services in light of 
community needs and resources, evaluating the strengths and weaknesses of the library and 
the services the trustees and staff believe the library should or can provide, and creating a 
structured plan for providing the resources and direction for the "right" services for that 
community.   

Long range planning prepares for the future. Strategic planning is based on the premise that 
change is necessary to survive and thrive in the future. Strategic planning answers the question, 
"What do we have to do now in order to improve our ability to operate five years in the future?" 
If the planning time frame is shorter it involves operational planning. Operational planning 
focuses on the improvement of things the library already does and is primarily concerned with 
the allocation of resources. (Handbook for Library Trustees of New York State, 2018 Edition, pg. 
59). 

WHAT IS THE PROCESS FOR LONG-RANGE PLANNING? 
The way a library moves through its planning process is as important as the plan itself. The 
planning process helps raise the community's awareness of library programs, services and 
needs and gains library support from the community. 

The long-range planning process is a cyclical one. While there are a variety of ways to develop a 
long-range plan, a successful planning process often includes the following steps: 

1. Develop a board vision. Have a conversation at a special planning meeting to discuss 
the hopes, dreams, and concerns for the future of the library.  



11  

2. Assessment. Identify usage trends through library circulation, program and technology 
data.  Comparing the library to others with similar budgets or service populations can be 
a useful planning activity as well. The New York State Library provides a compilation of 
financial and service statistics through its website at: 
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/libs/index.html#Statistics.  

3. Gather input from the community. Talk to the community.   Use a combination of focus 
groups, surveys, and interviews with community opinion leaders to get a broad amount 
of input, from both library users and non-users, which will help the board to identify 
community trends, aspirations, and priorities.  This is an outward-looking activity asking 
the community what their aspirations and priorities are. 

4. Analyze what was learned. Identify the library’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, 
and threats. 

5. Assess the library’s capacity to move forward in the areas of: 
 *Personnel 
 *Finance 
 *Facility 
 *Policy 
 *Partnerships 
 *Governance 
 *Marketing & Public Relations 
 *Measurement & Evaluation 

Through these five steps, the board and staff will have the information they need to create and 
write a solid plan for the future of the library. 

WHO PARTICIPATES IN THE PROCESS? 
Many people should be involved in the planning process in addition to the library director and 
the board of trustees. These may include: staff, library users, and representatives of business, 
education, government, or other key community groups. Public library system consultants or, in 
larger libraries, consultants under contract, may also advise or otherwise assist with the 
process. 

 

HELPFUL TIP: One way of involving the community is through the information- gathering 
stage of the plan. For example, use focus groups of community members, or community 
surveys that ask people to identify ways the library can meet community needs. 

 

 



12  

WHAT ARE THE COMPONENTS OF A LONG-RANGE PLAN? 
● Mission, Vision and Core Values 

○ The mission is a short, carefully crafted statement that tells why the library 
exists. The vision of a library is the type of statement that answers the questions: 
“where are we going?” and “what can we achieve?” Values are the principles 
and ideals that bind the library together including patrons, employees, vendors, 
and all stakeholders. Values are critically important to organizations because 
those who have the same value systems, or core values, tend to succeed within 
the organization, while those who do not share that set of values generally do 
not succeed. 

● Goals 
○ Broad statements of program intent that support the mission statement. 

● Objectives 
○ Specific, measurable, tasks or projects in support of a goal usually stated in terms 

of outcomes. 
● Action Steps or Activities 

○ Specific assignments that must be completed in order to reach an objective. 
○ Timeline. 

● Evaluation  
○ Assessment and measurement of activities that have already occurred and 

provides a foundation for moving forward.   
HOW MANY YEARS SHOULD A LONG-RANGE PLAN COVER? 
The time frame of the library’s plan depends on the organization and the initiatives the director 
and board set. Typical plans are for 3 to 5 years. Although most libraries will want to use a long-
range plan to set a direction for an extended period, they will probably limit detailed planning 
to a shorter period, perhaps two or three years. Although every library board should take into 
consideration continuous development for the library and the opportunities presented by the 
electronic information environment, they should set objectives and plan activities which, with a 
reasonable amount of effort, the library and community can achieve in the identified time 
period. 

HOW DOES A LIBRARY USE THE PLAN? 
Planning is a smart way to inform decisions about budgeting, personnel, capital improvements, 
library services and community involvement. Often, plans are used to develop a yearly "Action 
Plan" which is an outgrowth of the direction and choices made in the longer-range plan. 
Persons with responsibility for tasks within the plan work on these assignments according to 
the timeline in the plan. Staff and trustees review the entire plan for action and 
accomplishments according to a schedule provided in the plan. Many institutions use a "rolling" 
process in which one year is "added" or revised when the current year is completed (or nearly 
completed). 



13  

SHOULD LONG-RANGE PLANS OF SERVICE BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY? 
Yes. The current, board-approved long-range plan of service is required to be publicly available 
online (See Standard 11: Provides access to current library information) and the library should 
also have printed copies available for public distribution.  Online and printed long-range plans 
provide the community with transparency and accountability about library operations. 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 
Consult the library system for examples of different types of plans, as well as other assistance. 
It would also be helpful to submit a copy of the plan to the library system so it can be shared 
with others. Also, check out:  

Planning and Evaluation in the Handbook for Library Trustees of New York State: 
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/handbook.pdf  

Helping All Trustees Succeed (HATS) webinar series: 
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/webinars.htm#hats 
  



14  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #3: REPORT TO THE COMMUNITY 
 

Each library. . . provides a board-approved, written annual report to the community on the 
library's progress in meeting its mission, goals and objectives, as outlined in the library’s 
long-range plan of service. 

 

WHY PRESENT AN ANNUAL REPORT TO THE COMMUNITY? 

An annual report: 

1. Provides an opportunity to report on progress in meeting the library's mission, goals, 
and objectives as identified in the board's long-range plan of service. 

2. Gives board and staff an opportunity to review the past year's activities. 
3. Provides an opportunity to inform the community of the library's activities and 

encourages community engagement. 
4. Offers an opportunity for publicity and promotion of the library with public officials and 

other stakeholders. 
5. Serves as a resource for advocacy. 
6. Furnishes accountability to community and funding sources. 

WHO IS THE AUDIENCE? 

● Library users, the general public, and community partners  
● Board members, staff, and Friends of the Library 
● Public and elected officials (local, State and national) 
● Media (print and electronic) 
● Current and potential funding sources (local, regional, state and national) 

WHAT SHOULD THE REPORT INCLUDE? 

● Refer to the library’s goals and objectives, long range plan of service of the year in 
review. 

● Statistics that give a quantitative picture of the library's activities (e.g., number of 
people who visit the library, circulation, interlibrary loans, programs, in-library use, 
number of registered borrowers, number of people who receive outreach services). 

o Use Project Outcome or similar data reporting tools to create infographics. 
o Highlight the impact of new programs and/or services. 

● Noteworthy grants, fundraising events, or capital programs that the library undertook. 
● Community partnership activities. 
● Building construction and renovation initiatives. 
● Communicate the return on investment of resources offered to the community 



15  

o Use Library Value Calculator from the New York Library Association (NYLA) 
https://goo.gl/k9AEmF. 

● Photos to highlight some of the most successful and impressive programs and 
activities. (Tip: use pictures to convey success of the programs. Pictures of kids always go 
well.  Always ask for parent or guardian permission prior to using a child’s photo.)  

● Honors that the Director, staff members or trustees may have earned during the year 
that are relevant to library service. (e.g., ALA, NYLA or Library System awards, 
community awards, degrees earned, promotions.) 

● Library contact information: Director's name and phone number and board president's 
name and number. 

● Don’t forget to thank community partners, local government officials, legislators, staff, 
etc. who have contributed to the success of the library during the previous year.  

 

WHAT FORMATS AND MEANS OF DISTRIBUTION ARE USEFUL? 

● Written Report distributed internally among board and staff. Have multiple copies 
available for library users. Don't forget the library's support base. 

● Include a link to the report on library website. 
● Short versions of the report could be done in bookmark format or fact sheet and made 

available to all. 
● News Release to appropriate newsletters, penny-savers, and newspapers (Tip: let the 

widest distribution help spread the word of the great services and resources. Great 
public relations opportunity!). 

● Hand deliver or email reports to the movers and shakers of the community encouraging 
their endorsement and support for the library. (e.g., Chief of Police, Fire Chief, Mayor, 
School District officials, presidents of clubs, etc.) Support from influential members of 
the community who have no relationship to the library will carry greater weight with 
funding sources than support from trustees and Friends of the Library. 

● Written report with photos sent individually to local officials, county, state, and 
national public officials as well as private contributors and benefactors, current and 
potential. (Tip: this will strengthen the library's case for funding!) 

● Copies to neighboring libraries, and the Library System to foster cooperation and idea 
sharing. 

● Oral presentation given to electronic media (radio and TV), and/or at village or town 
boards.   

● Social Media tools can be used to share the library’s report, photos and statistics. 

Other ideas are also possible. At a minimum, choose one that allows for the widest distribution. 
It's so important to keep the library's story before the public! Don't be afraid to use it in several 
ways! Consider producing different versions for different audiences. The current, board-
approved annual report is required to be publicly available online (See Standard 11: Provides 
access to current library information). 

https://goo.gl/k9AEmF
https://goo.gl/k9AEmF
https://goo.gl/k9AEmF


16  

SHOULD THE ANNUAL REPORT BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY? 
Yes. The library’s current annual report is required to be publicly available online (See Standard 
11: Provides access to current library information) and the library should also have printed 
copies available for public distribution.  Online and printed annual reports provide the 
community with transparency and accountability about library operations. 

 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 

Consult the library system for examples of different types of annual reports as well as other 
assistance. Consider submitting a copy of the annual report to the library system so it can be 
shared with others. 

HELPFUL TIP: Use infographics, on the next page, to keep the community informed of 
library successes.  

  



17  

 



18  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #4: WRITTEN POLICIES 
 

Each library ...has board-approved written policies for the operation of the library, which 
shall be reviewed and updated at least once every five years or earlier if required by law. 

 

WHY ARE WRITTEN POLICIES NECESSARY? 

• Policies provide a mechanism for library managers and staff to translate the library’s 
service priorities into actions. 

• Policies serve as the primary tool for ensuring that all staff has the information they 
need to do their jobs effectively. 

• Policies provide a way to ensure that all members of the public know what they can 
expect from the library and that they are treated equitably. 

• Policies provide support for the library staff and members of the library’s governing 
body in the event of legal action. 

• Policies contribute to the overall culture of an organization by instilling norms and 
values.  

HELPFUL TIP: A policy that is written after an event has occurred may not be applied to 
that event. The new policy may help with future events or legal actions.  

WHAT ARE THE FOUR TESTS FOR LEGALLY ENFORCEABLE POLICIES? 
Library policies are enforceable only if they are in writing and adopted formally by the library 
board in an open meeting. In addition, these policies will be valid only if they meet the four 
tests of legality, reasonableness, nondiscriminatory application, and measurability. Policies 
which do not meet these tests could be ruled invalid if challenged in court. Prior to adopting a 
new policy or when reviewing a current policy, a library board should ask the following 
questions to test the policy for legal enforceability: 

1. Does the Policy Comply with Current Statutes? The library board should review the policy to 
determine whether any provisions would be illegal under state or federal law. For example, a 
library policy of “no animals or pets allowed” must provide an exception for service dogs and 
other support animals. It is illegal for a library to refuse entry to people accompanied by 
licensed support animals.  

2. Is the Policy Reasonable (including reasonable penalties)? Some policies, although not 
illegal per se, could still be ruled invalid because they are unreasonable. For example, state laws 
usually authorize the library’s governing board to adopt rules for resident’s access to the 
library, which includes setting hours the library is open to the public. Let’s say a library board 
decides to set the library’s hours as “10:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. Monday through Friday.” 
Although it would not be illegal to set such hours, a court could find the policy to be 



19  

unreasonable because in effect it denies library access to people who work or go to school 
during the day.  

The library board should also examine proposed policies to determine if any penalties are 
unreasonable. For example, it would be reasonable for a “no skateboarding in the library” 
policy to include a “penalty” that violators would be asked to leave for the rest of the day. It 
would not be reasonable to penalize the skateboarders by banning them from the library “for 
the rest of their lives.”  

3. Could There Be Discriminatory Application of the Policy? In order to be legally enforceable, 
library policies must be applied fairly. Courts will invalidate library policies which are not 
applied equally and are used to discriminate against certain groups of people. An example of 
discriminatory application of policy is that, “no sleeping” policy might be enforced against 
people who are homeless but not against others (such as the mayor or even a library board 
member) who drift off while reading in a comfy chair. Another example is that some libraries 
might have “no noise” policies which they enforce only against tables of giggling adolescents 
but never against tables of loud-speaking adults. 

4. Is the Policy Measurable? It is difficult, if not impossible, to enforce a policy fairly if the 
policy and penalty are not quantifiable. Policies should be written clearly so that library board 
members, library staff, and library users can read a library policy and know what constitutes a 
“violation” of the policy. For example, if a library has a policy which states that people will lose 
borrowing privileges if they have “too many overdue books for too long,” the definitions of “too 
many” and “too long” are not clear and may result in unfair application when interpreted by 
different staff members. On the other hand, a quantifiable policy states that people will lose 
borrowing privileges if they have “library material which has been overdue for three weeks or 
longer and if the individual has not returned the material or paid the replacement cost or made 
arrangements with the library for payment.” The policy also provides that the penalty, “loss of 
borrowing privileges,” will continue until the material is returned and/or paid for.  

When reviewing and rewriting existing policies, library boards should also ask themselves 
whether there is still a viable reason to have the policy in the first place. Some boards have 
eliminated long-standing policies which have outlived their original usefulness to the public 
library and have opted instead for a more positive image for the library in the community. 
These include policies such as overdue fines, rental fees, and restrictions of the number of 
materials borrowed at one time.  



20  

HOW ARE POLICIES DEVELOPED? 
In general, policies should be clear and concise, legal and fair. The library board is responsible for 
creating such policies, reviewing and revising them, and ultimately enforcing them with the 
assistance of the library director and staff. While trustees alone have the legal authority to make 
policy, the process works best when the library director and other key staff are closely involved. 
The staff has an important role in researching options, drafting recommendations, and 
presenting them to the board for discussion and approval.  

HELPFUL TIP: It's a good idea to start with a sample and then adapt it to the library's 
specific needs. Contact the library system for sample policies. 

The Board can appoint an ad hoc committee made of some board members, the director, and a 
staff member or two to work on policies. In some libraries the director develops the policies 
and the board reviews and approves them. It is important that the director and staff have input 
since they are familiar with the day-to-day operations of the library. 

WHAT POLICIES SHOULD A LIBRARY HAVE? 

All policies should include a process by which the board can respond to public comments or 
complaints.  Policies are, in effect, the rules of the library and should not be confused with 
procedures, which are an administrative function and describe how things are done. 

It is a good idea to categorize the library’s policies into internal (such as personnel, business 
continuity, financial controls, etc.) and external (dealing with the public).  These areas can be 
further broken down to suit the library’s particular organizational structure. 

All policies should be able to stand alone, and each policy should be dated with the original 
adoption and review and/or revision dates. The board’s policies should be recorded, compiled, 
and organized for ready access in a policy manual. The director and every trustee should have a 
copy of the policy manual and must be familiar with its contents. A thorough understanding of 
the library's policies is the foundation from which to adopt new policies, revise old ones, and 
interpret or defend the library’s rules. 

The State Library requires the following policies be adopted by all association and public 
Libraries at the time of registration: 

• Open Meeting Policy—All public and association libraries are subject to open meetings 
law (Education Law, Section 260-a). 

• Confidentiality of Library Records—All public and association libraries are required to 
keep library records confidential according to Civil Practice Laws and Rules, Section 
4509. 

https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/260-A
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/CVP/4509
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/CVP/4509


21  

• Conflict of Interest Policy—All public and association libraries are subject to Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law, Section 715-a. 

• Whistle Blower Policy—All public and association libraries with twenty or more 
employees AND an annual revenue in excess of one million dollars in the previous fiscal 
year are subject to Not-for-Profit Law, Section 715-b.  (Note that this is required only for 
certain libraries.) 

• Disaster Response Policy—A board-approved disaster response policy in the event of a 
natural or man-made disaster that affects the library facilities, holdings, or staff and 
library users. 

• Collection Development Policy 
• Meeting Space Policy (exception: if the library does not have a meeting room). 
• Internet Use Policy (required by Chapter 357 of the Laws of 2000) 
• Code of Ethics 
• Personnel Policy 
• Financial Controls: Purchasing/Procurement Policy and Petty Cash Policy. 

HELPFUL TIP: Find a recommended list of policies here: 
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/policies-checklist.htm 

SHOULD POLICIES BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY? 
Yes. Current, board-approved policies are required to be publicly available online (See Standard 
11: Provides access to current library information) and the library should also have printed 
copies available for public distribution. Online and printed policies provide the community with 
transparency and accountability about library operations. 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 

Contact the library system for samples of policies and assistance with reviewing the policies. 

See the chapter on Policies in the Handbook for Library Trustees for further information and 
resources: http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/#Policies 

HELPFUL TIP: Library Boards are advised to review library policies on a regular basis. It 
takes time to update a policy. New trustees should be given a copy of all library policies.  

  

https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/NPC/715-A
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/NPC/715-A
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/NPC/715-B
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/policies-checklist.htm
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/#Policies


22  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #5: WRITTEN BUDGET 
 

 

WHY IS PRESENTATION OF A BOARD-APPROVED WRITTEN BUDGET TO THE PUBLIC 
NECESSARY?  
 

1. A written budget request ensures fiscal accountability from the board to the public. 
It allows for the provision of services necessary to ensure proper functioning of the 
library. 

2. A budget request notifies the funding agency of the fiscal requirements for the 
library in the coming year so that funds may be properly and timely allocated. 

3. A written budget request serves as a barometer for future needs and avoids 
potential future shortfalls. 

4. A written budget request is a powerful advocacy tool notifying the public about the 
crucial role of the library in the community through the breadth and variety of 
programs and services provided. 

WHO SHOULD PREPARE THE BUDGET? 

Preparation of the budget should be a joint project of the board of trustees and the library 
director. It is recommended that the budget draft be reviewed by the library treasurer and/or a 
board finance committee prior to presenting to the full Board.  

HELPFUL TIP: “The best budgets are developed in relationship to the library’s long-range 
and strategic planning process and include projections for future years.” (Handbook for Library 
Trustees of New York State, 2018 Edition, pg. 50.) 

HELPFUL TIP: In order to be transparent to community members, the library’s budget 
should be made readily available for review by any members of the public, both in person at 
the library and online at all times. 

WHAT SHOULD THE BUDGET INCLUDE? 

Although formats and fiscal year may differ, all library budgets should:  

Each library. . . annually prepares and publishes a board-approved, written budget, 
which enables the library to address the community’s needs, as outlined in the 
library’s long-range plan of service. 



23  

1. Indicate the resources that will be needed to meet the library's goals and objectives 
within the time period covered in the document.  
 

2. Indicate income and expenditure figures based on past experience considering 
anticipated changes.  

The library’s long-range plan should be the foundation for the development of any library 
budget. Library budgets should contain sufficient expenditure allocations to meet the 
information and service needs of the community while complying with the NYS Comptroller's 
guidelines and meeting the minimum standards. 

SHOULD BUDGETS BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY? 
Yes.  The current, board-approved budget is required to be publicly available online (See 
Standard 11: Provides access to current library information) and the library should also have 
printed copies available for public distribution.  Online and printed budgets provide the 
community with transparency and accountability about library operations. 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 

Contact the library system for assistance.  

See the chapter, Budgets and Finance, in the Handbook for Library Trustees: 
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/handbook/chapter11.htm. 

The Office of the New York State Comptroller has a useful series of Local Government 
Management Guides that include technical information and suggested practices for various 
financial and budgeting topics. 

  

https://www.osc.state.ny.us/localgov/pubs/listacctg.htm#top
https://www.osc.state.ny.us/localgov/pubs/listacctg.htm#top


24  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #6: EVALUATING EFFECTIVENESS 
 

Each library...periodically evaluates the effectiveness of the library's programs, services and 
collections to address community needs, as outlined in the library’s long-range plan of 
service. 

 

WHAT IS EVALUATION? 

Evaluation is the systematic and ongoing assessment of an organization's progress and success 
in fulfilling its mission, using a variety of qualitative and quantitative measurement techniques. 
It measures what has already occurred to guide the planning process for the future.  

To meet this standard, a library should be able to demonstrate that it queried its community, 
developed service objectives based on community need, and evaluated the results of those 
objectives. The library also needs to demonstrate that action was taken to incorporate the 
results in the library's planning process. It is not enough to set a questionnaire on the 
circulation desk for the occasional curious library user to pick up. There should be an organized 
effort to determine community needs, and then to evaluate how well the library is meeting 
those needs through its collection and services. 

 
WHY IS EVALUATION ESSENTIAL? 

In order to meet community needs effectively, ongoing evaluation is necessary. Evaluation 
provides a concrete measurement of the quality and impact of what the library offers. Some 
evaluative efforts will be more comprehensive than others, depending on what the library 
needs to know. Evaluation includes asking current library users how the library is doing, 
reaching out to the community at large to see what needs are not being met, and exploring why 
some potential users are not yet involved in the library. Therefore, the data generated can help 
the library flourish by providing information regarding how to best meet community needs, 
fulfill the mission, support advocacy efforts, justify budgets/staffing, etc. 

 
WHAT CAN BE EVALUATED? 

Most evaluations focus on one or two areas at a time. Some will be more relevant than others, 
depending on what the library wishes to learn. Although the area traditionally identified as 
most important to library users is the library's service offerings, other areas may need to be the 
focus during any particular evaluation cycle. It is helpful to begin by conducting a community 
needs assessment and clarifying the library’s goals and objectives (refer to the library’s strategic 
plan). This process can help determine what questions need to be answered. 



25  

Possible categories and areas of evaluation include: 
● Inputs -- staff, materials 
● Outputs -- circulation, in-house use of materials, visits, programs, internet use, database 

searches, engagement on the library’s social media sites 
● Outcomes -- the “why” behind a program or service 
● Internal processes -- efficiency, staff helpfulness 
● Community fit -- public opinion 
● Access to materials -- the speed of delivery, hours, charges, fees 
● Physical facility -- building appeal, parking, location 
● Management elements -- both board and staff activities 
● Service offerings -- range, variety 
● Service to special groups -- youth, homebound, aged, people with disabilities, 

unemployed or underemployed, etc. 
 

WHAT IS THE PROCESS FOR EVALUATING EFFECTIVENESS? 

After a library has decided that evaluation is an important part of meeting its mission, goals and 
objectives, the process of choosing the most effective evaluation tool begins. Refer to Library 
Research Service and WebJunction courses on assessment, evaluation and planning for helpful 
information.  

Questions a library might ask to facilitate the assessment process include: 
● What does the library wish to evaluate, and why? 
● What level of performance does the library want to achieve? 
● Which investigative technique will work best? 
● How will the library actually measure the performance level? 
● Did the library do what was promised; to what extent did the library meet the 

objectives? 
● What data does the library already collect or have access to? 
● What is the timeline for the evaluation? 

There are three categories of evaluation tools: 

● Quantitative measures - measurements that produce numerical results. Statistical 
packages are available to assist libraries. Refer to Librarian and Researcher Knowledge 
Space for more information. 

● Qualitative measures - the data are not in the form of numbers. 
○ Focus group /Individual interviews: Interviews and focus groups are conducted 

with evaluation and program/initiative stakeholders. These include, but are not 
limited to, staff, administrators, participants and their parents or families, 
funders, and community members. Interviews and focus groups can be 
conducted in person or over the phone. Questions posed in interviews and focus 
groups are generally open-ended and responses are documented in full, through 

https://www.ifla.org/files/assets/library-buildings-and-equipment/Publications/poe_final_version.pdf
http://www.ala.org/yalsa/sites/ala.org.yalsa/files/content/guidelines/yacompetencies/evaluationtool.pdf
http://www.ala.org/Template.cfm?Section=adultlibrary&template=/ContentManagement/ContentDisplay.cfm&ContentID=26943
https://www.lrs.org/ripl-regional-resources/
https://www.lrs.org/ripl-regional-resources/
https://learn.webjunction.org/course/index.php?categoryid=43
http://www.ala.org/tools/research/larks/researchtools
http://www.ala.org/tools/research/larks/researchtools
http://www.ala.org/tools/sites/ala.org.tools/files/content/LTC_ConvoGuide_updated_final2.pdf


26  

detailed note-taking or transcription. The purpose of interviews and focus 
groups is to gather detailed descriptions, from a purposeful sample of 
stakeholders, of the program processes and the stakeholders' opinions of those 
processes. (www.imls.gov) 
 

○ Observation: Observation is an unobtrusive method for gathering information 
about how the program/initiative operates. Observations can be highly 
structured, with protocols for recording specific behaviors at specific times, or 
unstructured, taking a more casual, "look-and-see" approach to understanding 
the day-to-day operation of the program. Data from observations are used to 
supplement interviews and surveys in order to complete the description of the 
program/initiative and to verify information gathered through other methods. 
(www.imls.gov) 
 

○ Evaluations: For example, evaluation of a meeting or workshop may involve a 
brief discussion at the end of the meeting or be a more formal written evaluation 
by participants immediately following the event. Meaningful long-term change 
may involve follow-up interviews at a later date. 
 

● Use Surveys of current and potential library users 
Surveys and questionnaires are also conducted with evaluation and program/initiative 
stakeholders. These are usually administered on paper, through the mail, in a highly 
structured interview process in which respondents are asked to choose answers from 
those predetermined on the survey, or more recently, through email and on the Web. 
The purpose of surveys/questionnaires is to gather specific information—often 
regarding opinions or levels of satisfaction, in addition to demographic information—
from a large, representative sample. 
 
Helpful resources include: 

○ Google Forms 
○ Project Outcome 
○ Survey Monkey 
○ Snap Surveys 
○ Surveygizmo 

 
WHAT SHOULD BE DONE WITH THE FINDINGS? 
The findings need to be analyzed and discussed by the library director and full board and 
recommendations should be made to achieve a higher level of effectiveness. As with other 
parts of any planning process, the evaluation results should be widely disseminated and used as 
a chance to gain publicity and generate support for any proposals. The following tools are very 
useful when distributing information regarding the value of library services: 

● Valuing Library Services Calculator – determine the value of resources and services 
● CBA/ROI Calculator - benefit for every dollar spent calculation 

http://www.imls.gov/
https://www.google.com/forms/about/
http://www.ala.org/pla/initiatives/performancemeasurement
https://www.surveymonkey.com/
https://www.snapsurveys.com/
https://www.surveygizmo.com/
https://nnlm.gov/mcr/training/program-evaluation/calculator
https://nnlm.gov/mcr/training/program-evaluation/cost-benefit-and-roi-calculator


27  

Responsibilities for board-approved changes should be clearly laid out, timelines set, and tasks 
completed. Evaluating effectiveness does not end here, as it needs to be an ongoing process. 
 
 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 

Consult the library system for further assistance. In addition to staff expertise, there are a 
number of manuals and other materials which the system can share with the library. 
  



28  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #7: HOURS 
    

Each library...is open the following hours. 

 

Population Minimum Weekly Hours Open 

Up to 500 12 

500-2,499 20 

2,500-4,999 25 

5,000-14,999 35 

15,000—24,999 40 

25,000-99,999 55 

100,000 and above 60 
 
WHY ARE MINIMUM WEEKLY HOURS IMPORTANT?  
A good library is accessible to the community. Standard 7 requires that each public or free 
association library be open a fixed schedule of minimum weekly hours open on a 52-week basis. 
The minimum number of weekly hours open is linked to the size of the population the library is 
chartered to serve. Minimum weekly hours open means the fewest number of hours the library 
is open to the public every week during the year. 

Many public libraries exceed these standards because the community, library board and library 
staff recognize that the number of hours of public service leads to greater service to and use by 
the public. While libraries may consider expanding public service hours during some parts of 
the year to meet increased library user needs, Standard 7 requires that each library also 
maintain the fixed schedule of minimum weekly hours open on a 52-week basis. 

The library should post the days and the hours when the library is open in a prominent location 
and include hours open in printed and online information describing the library and its services. 

Some communities, such as summer resorts, experience a large influx of population for a part 
of the year. Although not required, resort community libraries should consider expanding public 
service hours to meet increased library user needs during these times. 



29  

WHAT ABOUT EVENINGS, WEEKENDS AND HOLIDAYS? 

Library hours should include morning, afternoon, evening and weekend hours based on actual 
and potential library user needs. The standards do not require a library to open on legal 
holidays or Sundays. In a week where a portion of the library's fixed schedule of minimum 
weekly hours open falls on a legal holiday, the library may fall below the minimum weekly hours 
open requirement for that particular week. 

HOW DOES A LIBRARY COUNT THE HOURS IF IT HAS BRANCHES? 

Minimum weekly hours open means the fewest number of hours the library is open to the 
public every week during the year. A library with more than one service outlet may use the 
total non-overlapping hours of all the library's service outlets to meet the minimum weekly 
hours open requirement. Libraries should try to schedule different hours of service at outlets if 
possible. 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 

Consult the library system for help in analyzing library user needs and deciding the hours that 
best meet varying library user needs. 

  



30  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #8: MAINTAINING A FACILITY TO 
MEET COMMUNITY NEEDS 
 

 

HOW DOES THE LIBRARY DETERMINE IF THE FACILITY IS ADEQUATE? 
The number one resource for creating a facility that meets community needs is to look at the 
building in the context of the library’s long-range plan. Any building expert would first ask the 
library director and board, "what are the goals and service plans of the library?" General 
services planning precedes Facility Planning because it defines the library users, services, and 
programs of the library. Once these plans are defined, the board, director, and other 
stakeholders can determine specific space needs, layout, and technical specifications such as 
wiring for technology, compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, compliance with 
environmental regulations (i.e. asbestos and lead abatement), energy efficiency, and creating 
spaces that reflect the community. 

While there are many resources to help determine the facility needs, the final determination of 
adequacy rests in the hands of the trustees.  

● A long-range plan with clearly articulated mission statement, goals, objectives and an 
action plan provide a basis for evaluating whether or not a library has a facility which 
adequately meets community needs. 

● The planning and evaluation process should involve input from staff, members of the 
community or communities served (including people with physical disabilities), and the 
board. The process should be conducted in an open, well-publicized manner. This 
ensures that those paying for and residing in the service area will have a say in, and take 
ownership of, their library facility. See Standard #2, Long-Range Plan for more 
information.   

● A sub-section of the library’s overall long-range plan should include a facility plan that 
not only looks at the importance of aligning the building with the community’s needs, 
but also taking into consideration general maintenance, upkeep, and scheduled repairs. 
The library may find it useful to contact their library system to assist in the development 
of a facility plan. 

● Care must be taken to provide for a facility which is accessible to the entire community. 
● Where legal mandates (local, State, or Federal) exist, it is the responsibility of the library 

to be aware of and comply with those requirements. 

  

Each library...maintains a facility that addresses community needs, as outlined in the 
library’s long-range plan of service including adequate space, lighting, shelving, seating. 

        

 



31  

WHAT INFORMATION SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN A MASTER FACILITY PLAN? 
A Master Facility Plan can include, but is not limited to:  

● Plans for expansions or building acquisitions. 
● Preventative maintenance schedules for major systems such as HVAC, roof, parking lot, 

elevators/lifts, sidewalks, etc.  
● Making every aspect of the library accessible to all patrons if they are not currently 

accessible.  
● Planned evaluation of space use in conjunction with library users’ experience/service. 
● Schedule for evaluating safety and security.  
● Development of a Disaster Response Plan. 
● Environmentally sustainable design and consideration for future generations.  

 
HOW DOES A LIBRARY USE A FACILITY PLAN? 

● The library board should appoint a Facilities Committee to regularly evaluate and discuss 
the library building and its upcoming needs/scheduled maintenance.  

● If funding is required to implement projects such as a renovation, expansion, technology 
infrastructure, and/or new building acquisitions the library may wish to speak to the 
library system about applying for State Aid for Library Construction funds. 

● If a ballot measure, such as a bond vote, is required to fund a facility project, the plan 
should be widely disseminated and used to gain public understanding and support of 
the project. 

● The Facility Plan should clearly lay out tasks and job responsibilities, timelines, and items 
completed. 

● Regular action, review, and evaluation of the Facility Plan is needed in order to uphold 
this standard.   

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 
Below are a number of useful resources to guide the library in meeting this standard.  One of 
the first steps is to contact the library system for guidance.  

● Nichols, J., Aldrich, R. S., Public Library System Directors' Organization of New York 
State, Library Trustees Association of New York State & New York State Library. (2018). 
Handbook for Library Trustees of New York State. 

● Aldrich, R. S. (2018). Sustainable Thinking: Ensuring your library's future in an uncertain 
world. 

● NYLA Sustainability Initiative; https://www.nyla.org/sustainability/ 
● Sannwald, W. W. (2016). Checklist of library building design considerations. 
● Schlipf, F. A., & Moorman, J. A. (2018). The practical handbook of library architecture: 

Creating building spaces that work. 
● Accessible Building Design, Eastern Paralyzed Veterans Association, Jackson Heights, 

New York, no publication date. Call 1-800-444-0120. 

  

https://www.nyla.org/sustainability/


32  

The following resources prescribe specific building standards to ensure access for all persons 
including those with disabilities. 

● The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (ADA.gov) 
● Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG) 
● Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Sections 504 and 508) (Disability.gov) 
● Architectural Barriers Act (Access-Board.gov)  

  



33  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #9: PROGRAMMING 
 

 

 

WHY SHOULD LIBRARIES PROVIDE PROGRAMMING? 
Library “programs help to illuminate the experiences, beliefs and values that unite us as human 
beings. They stimulate us to make connections where we noticed none before—between our 
ancestors and ourselves, between one culture and another, between the community and the 
individual.” (ALA Public Program Office website.) 

 

WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF PROGRAMMING? 
Benefits to the Community 

● Connecting people with each other and essential services. 
● Delivering high-quality public education. 
● Encouraging civic engagement. 
● Providing literacy and lifelong learning opportunities.  

 

HELPFUL TIP: Community members can be a great resource to develop and run new 
programs.  

Benefits to the Library 

● Positions the library as a valuable community partner in education and establishes the 
library as a vital part of community life. 

● Introduces community members to the resources of the public library. 
● Attracts new library users and reaches people who would not usually come to the 

library. 
● Creates positive publicity for the library. 
● Promotes community involvement in the mission of the library. 
● Establishes partnerships and collaborations with community partners. 
● Increases circulation of library materials. 

 

BEST PRACTICES FOR PROGRAM PLANNING AND SCHEDULING 
● Know the reasons for holding a library program. 
● Review prior year programming data. 
● Establish goals and objectives for programming.  

Each library...provides programming to address community needs, as outlined in the 
library’s long-range plan of service. 

http://www.ala.org/aboutala/offices/ppo/resources/benefitspublic


34  

● Know the library’s resources. 
● Plan the components of the program. 
● Seek community support for the program. 
● Publicize and promote the program both in the library and throughout the community. 
● Communicate with all library staff about preparations, registration and programming so 

everyone is knowledgeable about the programming at the library. 
● After Programs: send thank you notes, collect and report results, evaluate. 

 

 

RESOURCES 
● Programming Librarian [ALA] – A place to share and browse programs, learn from fellow 

programming librarians and explore learning and grant opportunities. 
● ALA Programs Office  – The ALA Public Programs Office promotes cultural and 

community programming as an essential part of library service. 
● Project Outcome [PLA]- Performance Outcome Measures for Public Libraries Initiative 
● WebJunction – Programming webinars/documents 
● Summer Reading at New York Libraries – Resources for librarians and educators to help 

make Summer Reading Programs a success! 
● The National Impact of Library Public Programs Assessment [NILPPA] – A research 

project by the American Library Association – aims to develop a research agenda to 
understand the impacts of library public programs nationwide. 

● Ready to Read at New York Libraries—Resources to improve and expand the availability 
of high quality public library early-learning services. 

 

These programming guidelines were developed by the Mid-Hudson Library System:  
https://midhudson.org/topics/sustainable-libraries/programming/. 

 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 
Consult with the library system if further assistance or advice is needed.  

  

http://www.programminglibrarian.org/
http://www.ala.org/offices/ppo
http://www.ala.org/pla/performancemeasurement
http://www.webjunction.org/explore-topics/programming.html
http://www.summerreadingnys.org/librarians-educators/
http://nilppa.newknowledge.org/
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/earlylit/index.html
https://midhudson.org/topics/sustainable-libraries/programming/


35  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #10: TECHNOLOGY TO MEET 
COMMUNITY NEEDS 

 

Twenty-first century libraries should be automated and connected to facilitate improved 
service and resource sharing.  As community anchor institutions, local libraries are often the 
only source of free, high-speed internet access in the community.  Libraries should plan to 
increase broadband speeds and technology infrastructure regularly to keep pace with the rapid 
life cycles of modern computers and telecommunications equipment.  All library facilities 
should provide high-speed wireless access to the internet so library users may use their own 
devices. 

WHAT IS A CIRCULATION SYSTEM? 
A circulation system is also called an integrated library system (ILS).  An ILS uses software that 
facilitates resource sharing by the tracking of items owned by a library, as well as library users’ 
borrowing, returning and requesting activities.  

 

HELPFUL TIP: The library system plays a crucial role in providing system-wide ILS 
technology, support, and training for local library staff.  Contact the library system with all ILS 
questions or issues. 

 

WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF AN INTEGRATED LIBRARY SYSTEM (ILS)? 
 

Benefits to Library Users: 

● Library users can view library holdings and item availability using an online catalog that 
can be accessed during and after library hours and via a mobile device. 

● Library users can renew items online at their convenience.  
● Library users can place holds on items not available at their home library or that are 

currently in use.  
● The automated system can provide library users with information about a particular 

item as well as provide other suggestions depending on the topic of search.  
 

 

 

Each library…. provides a circulation system that facilitates access to the local library 
collection and other library catalogs; and provides equipment, technology, and internet 
connectivity to address community needs and facilitate access to information. 

 



36  

Benefits to Library Staff:  

● The ILS can generate statistics and reports. 
● The library can track the status of items easily. The automated system prints and emails 

overdue notices. 
● The automated system facilitates collection development, weeding of unwanted 

materials and assists with inventory. 
● Assists with collecting fines and lost books funds. 

 

WHAT IS MEANT BY EQUIPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY, AND INTERNET CONNECTIVITY? 
Equipment and technology refer to computers, laptops, printers, scanners or other devices that 
library users can use at the library to access information online or use to meet their particular 
education, business or personal needs. Internet connectivity refers to the library’s broadband 
internet and Wi-Fi connections.  Libraries should strive to provide connectivity speeds of at 
least 100Mbps where available.  

 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN TO THE LIBRARY?   
The ability to provide technology to the community has an impact on the library budget. 
Developing a technology plan is recommended in order to better estimate the annual expenses 
and growth projections based on local needs. This plan should include equipment replacement 
and broadband connectivity costs.  

 

HELPFUL TIP: Find more information about developing a Technology Plan at the Mid-
Hudson Library System website: https://midhudson.org/topics/resource-sharing/technology-
operations/technology-plan/ 

 

 

BEST PRACTICES 
In addition to the technology plan, it is recommended that every library keep and maintain the 
following technology documents (For additional information and sample documents see “Tech 
Documentation” at the Mid-Hudson Library System Website.) 

 

● IT Reference Sheet: a basic sheet of contact information. 
● Technology Task List: a list of tech tasks to be performed. 
● Inventory: a list of all computers, network equipment, printers, servers, routers, 

wireless access points, etc. 
● Network Diagram: a simple diagram mapping out the connections between items on 

the network. 

https://midhudson.org/topics/resource-sharing/technology-operations/technology-plan/
https://midhudson.org/topics/resource-sharing/technology-operations/technology-plan/
https://midhudson.org/topics/resource-sharing/technology-operations/tech-documentation/
https://midhudson.org/topics/resource-sharing/technology-operations/tech-documentation/


37  

● Passwords: a list of library accounts and passwords.  This should include Username, 
password, and any associated email addresses and websites. 

● Software License Keys: a list of all software license keys.  This should include software 
name, license key, the quantity of licenses, etc. 

● Vendor and Support Contract information: a list of all vendors and contractors used.  
This should include company name, account manager or point of contact, phone 
numbers, email and websites. 

  



38  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #11: PROVIDES ACCESS TO 
CURRENT LIBRARY INFORMATION 
 

Each library. . . provides access to current library information in print and online, facilitating 
the understanding of library services, operations and governance; information provided 
online shall include the standards referenced in paragraphs one through five of this 
subdivision (standards 1 through 5). 

 
 

WHY HAVE PRINTED AND ONLINE INFORMATION ABOUT THE LIBRARY? 

Providing printed and online information that describes the library and explains the services 
offered in an attractively produced format such as a brochure or bookmark is an essential 
element of a good public relations program. Printed and online information also provides the 
community with transparency and accountability about library operations and services.  It is 
important that the library’s website and social media venues have up to date information about 
the library to keep online library users informed and attract future library users.  

WHAT TYPES OF INFORMATION SHOULD BE INCLUDED? 

The library's printed and online information should include, at a minimum, the following 
elements: 

● Library name 
● Library street address 
● Library website address 
● Board meeting dates and times 
● Agenda for regular board meetings posted at least a week ahead of the meeting time 
● Agenda or topic for special meetings posted at least 72 hours in advance 
● Draft Board meeting minutes within two weeks of meeting 
● Library telephone number, FAX number, and e-mail address 
● Listing of the days and the hours when the library is open to the public 
● A brief description of the library (e.g., roles, mission) 
● Listing of the services offered to the public and who is eligible to use them (e.g., 

interlibrary loan, reserves, extended vacation loans, community rooms, photocopying, 
story hours and other programs, public access computers, maker spaces) 

● Explanation of the library's borrowing rules: 
o who is eligible for a library card 
o length of loan for library materials 
o policies on overdue items, fines, and fees 

In addition to printed information, the library should also have a scheduled program of 
announcements for social media venues, newspaper, television, and radio and utilize public 



39  

service announcements. Build the image of the library as a proactive and vital community 
service by keeping the community informed of ongoing programs and services. 

HELPFUL TIP: Have a social media policy. It will help avoid confusion among library 
employees on the image the library wants to portray online. 

WHAT FORMATS AND MEANS OF DISTRIBUTION ARE ACCEPTABLE? 
A library should have an active, ongoing planned and coordinated approach to public relations 
if it is going to fulfill its mission. An attractively produced brochure or bookmark is a basic 
element of such a program. This brochure or bookmark should be updated regularly and 
available for distribution in the library. Library staff should ensure that each new borrower 
receives a copy. Copies may also be placed in public places in the community. 

Public information materials do not need to be expensive or elaborate. Concise, clear 
information about the library is most likely to be useful. An appealing, neat format is easier to 
understand. A positive and friendly tone (rather than a listing of what is not allowed, for 
example) creates an impression that the library is service-oriented. Printed and other 
information should create an image of the library as a community institution that welcomes 
and encourages community residents to make full use of library facilities, materials, and 
services. 

Library staff, board members and members of the Friends' group may use the library's printed 
information when telling community groups and government officials about the library and its 
services. Some library staff work closely with local community groups and/or realtor 
associations to distribute information about the library as new families are welcomed to the 
community. Residents are voters and taxpayers and deserve to be informed about this valuable 
tax-supported service. 

Library website, blogs or social media venues can help increase library use by reaching current 
or new community members. 

To meet this standard, a library must also post the following board-approved information 
online: 

● ByLaws (see Standard 1) 
● Long-Range Plan (see Standard 2) 
● Annual Report to the Community (see Standard 3) 
● Policies (see Standard 4) 
● Budget (see Standard 5) 

 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 
Consult the library system for any assistance that may be needed.   

https://www.webjunction.org/news/webjunction/social-media-policies.html


40  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #12 EMPLOYS A PAID DIRECTOR 
 

 

WHY HAVE A PAID DIRECTOR?  
A good library is staffed by competent, well-trained personnel so that it can guarantee effective 
and quality library service to the community. One of a good library's most important assets is 
the library director. The library director is responsible, among other things, for working with the 
library board, the library staff and residents of the community to assess library service needs, 
planning for library services to meet those needs, and administering the day-to-day delivery of 
quality library service to the community. 

While volunteers are helpful in extending the services a library is able to offer the community, 
the library director, even in the smallest of libraries, should be paid a salary in return for 
delivering consistent, quality leadership and public service. 

The board should offer a salary, hours and benefits comparable with other positions in the 
community requiring similar educational preparation and job assignments. 

WHAT ARE THE PROVISIONS OF COMMISSIONER'S REGULATION 90.8? 
Commissioner's Regulation (CR) 90.8 addresses the appointment of library personnel in public, 
free association and Indian libraries. The provisions of CR 90.8 in relation to the director are 
summarized on the following chart: 

 Minimum Education 
Requirements 

 

POPULATION MEMBER OF A PUBLIC 
LIBRARY SYSTEM 

NOT A MEMBER OF A 
PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM 

Below 2,500 No requirement. No requirement. 

2,500 to 4,999 2 academic years of study at 
an approved college or 
university. 

A bachelor’s degree from an 
approved college or 
university. 

5,000 to 7,499 A bachelor’s degree from an 
approved college or 
university. 

A public librarian’s 
professional certificate. 

7,500 or more A public librarian’s 
professional certificate. 

A public librarian’s 
professional certificate. 

 

Each library…employs a paid director in accordance with the provisions of Section 90.8 
of this Part. 

 

https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I3651ccb2c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)


41  

WHAT IS THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITY IN MEETING THIS STANDARD?  

The board should pay the director a salary commensurate with the education and experience 
level required for the position. Benefits should include some health insurance coverage, 
provision for sick leave, and paid vacation. Other benefits, such as paid personal leave, 
retirement plans, investment plans may also be offered in addition to a salary. The board is 
responsible for ensuring that an accurate accounting of supplemental benefits is kept for each 
employee for tax reporting purposes. 

CR 90.2 does not specify the number of hours that the paid director must be employed. 
However, the board should hire a director for a sufficient number of hours to adequately 
administer the library. For libraries open less than 35 hours a week, this means employing a 
paid director for at least the number of hours that the library facility is open to the public. 

In addition to a competitive salary and benefits, continuing education for staff development is 
essential for the director. In fact, continuing education is important for all library staff, not just 
the director. The board should make continuing education a priority and allocate funds 
necessary in the budget. Opportunities in the form of conferences and release time for the 
continuing education and professional enrichment of the staff, including attendance at system 
workshops, local, state and national conferences, should be encouraged by trustees. 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 
Consult the library system for assistance. 
  

https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I36517e98c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/libs/index.html


42  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #13: TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FOR 
STAFF 
 

Each library... provides library staff with annual technology training, appropriate to their position, 
to address community needs as outlined in the library’s long-range plan of service. 

 

WHY IS ANNUAL TECHNOLOGY TRAINING NECESSARY FOR LIBRARY STAFF?  
Without trained staff, the public’s ongoing investment in new library technologies will decrease 
in value. Providing technology training is an opportunity for library staff to keep pace with 
changing technologies. A well-trained staff will be able to provide a better library user 
experience with less frustration. Annual technology training for all library staff ensures the full 
utilization of library technology resources as defined in the long-range plan. 

 

ORGANIZING AND PLANNING TECHNOLOGY TRAINING 
Training opportunities should be provided annually for all staff by the library director, in 
consultation with the board, depending on the needs of the staff and community as defined in 
the library’s long-range plan.  It is recommended that the library director and staff create an 
annual training plan. Technology training should be flexible to accommodate and adapt to the 
constantly changing technologies. A best practice is to also have a budget line for staff training. 
The Trustee Handbook recommends at least 1% of the library’s budget should be dedicated to 
education for staff and trustees. 

There are many ways to provide annual technology training for staff.  Here are some ideas: 

● Professional Development Day: Work with the library board to determine a day, half 
day or a few hours when the library will close for a “professional development” or “staff 
training” day.   

● Staff Meetings: Devote a portion of every staff meeting to training on a specific 
technology issue. 

● Webinars/Online Courses: Assign staff to take specific webinars or online courses and 
give them uninterrupted time during the workday to complete the webinar or online 
course. 

● Local, Regional, State and National Conferences: Encourage staff to attend workshops 
and conferences.  Many conferences such as the New York Library Association’s  Annual 
Conference and Computers in Libraries offer many opportunities for technology 
training.  

● Public Library Systems: many systems provide in-person and customized training for 
member libraries. 
 



43  

HELPFUL TIP: Public Library Systems can play a crucial role in providing technology 
training for library staff.  Contact them for help getting started. 

WHAT ARE SOME TECHNOLOGY TRAINING RESOURCES? 
 

● American Library Association: Online Webinar Calendar 
● GCF Learn Free.org: free online courses 
● Empire State Library Network (ESLN): ESLN is comprised of the nine Reference and 

Research Library Resource Councils in New York State.  Each individual council provides 
a range of continuing education opportunjities. 

● New York Library Association: Continuing Education and archived Webinars 
● New York State Library/Division of Library Development: upcoming and archived 

webinars. 
● Public Library Association: Conferences, Continuing Education and webinars. 
● WebJunction: free self-paced webinars for all library workers and trustees. 
● NOVELNY: Webinars and training related to the NOVELNY databases. 

 

 

HELPFUL TIP: The State Library partners with OCLC to provide free access to 
WebJunction’s webinars and self-paced courses for all library workers, volunteers, and students 
in New York State.  The free access is available at learn.webjunction.org. 

  

http://www.ala.org/Template.cfm?Section=olweb&Template=/Conference/ConferenceList.cfm&ConferenceTypeCode=X
https://www.gcflearnfree.org/
https://www.esln.org/event-list/
https://www.nyla.org/max/4DCGI/cms/review.html?Action=CMS_Document&DocID=1873&MenuKey=career
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/webinars/index.html
http://www.ala.org/pla/education
http://learn.webjunction.org/
http://novelnewyork.org/training.php
http://learn.webjunction.org/
http://learn.webjunction.org/


44  

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #14: COMMUNITY PARTNERS 
 

 

WHY ESTABLISH PARTNERSHIPS WITHIN THE COMMUNITY? 
Collaboration and partnerships with other local organizations are critical foundations for long-
term sustainability and community impact. The more bridges built to the community and within 
the community, the stronger the ties between the library and supporters. 

To meet this standard, a library must demonstrate that it is actively partnering with one or 
more community organizations by working collaboratively to offer a library program or library 
service.  For example: Summer Reading by partnering with the school district; partnering with 
the Chamber of Commerce to provide services to local businesses; working with the county 
health department to provide opioid overdose prevention programs; partnering with literacy 
volunteers to offer English as a Second Language courses in the library or literacy tutoring. 

 

“As trusted centers of the community, libraries are in a unique position to attract potential 
partners, and to provide resources and benefits to organizations with common goals. In a time 
of diminishing funds and increasing demands, partnerships are essential to meeting community 
needs, and to sustaining an active and engaged environment for customers.” (WebJunction, 
Libraries Building Strong Community Partnerships, 
https://www.webjunction.org/news/webjunction/building-strong-community-
partnerships.html) 

 

WHAT ARE SOME TYPES OF ORGANIZATIONS AND GROUPS WITH WHICH A LIBRARY CAN 
FORM PARTNERSHIPS? 
Some good examples of potential community partners include  local school districts and BOCES; 
preschools and nursery schools; Head Start; YMCA; museums; historical societies; community 
colleges and universities; arts councils; Cornell Cooperative Extension; genealogical societies; 
United Way; soil and water conservation agencies; governmental agencies; Small Business 
Administration; Chamber of Commerce; local businesses; Workforce Development agencies; 
hospitals; Lions and Rotary clubs; and many others depending on the community.  

WHAT ARE THE GOALS OF THESE PARTNERSHIPS? 
Community partners can provide new programming opportunities, new resources for the 
library, and new services to library users. Community partnerships can also help bring non-

Each library...establishes and maintains partnerships with other educational, cultural or 
community organizations which enable the library to address the community’s needs, as 
outlined in the library’s long-range plan of service. 

https://www.webjunction.org/news/webjunction/building-strong-community-partnerships.html
https://www.webjunction.org/news/webjunction/building-strong-community-partnerships.html


45  

users, occasional users, and new residents into the library.  This results in quality programming 
for minimal expense that is more responsive to community needs and strengthens community 
engagement with the library.   

RESOURCES TO HELP GET STARTED WITH COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS: 
 

• Communication and Partnerships – Tools (WebJunction): 
https://webjunction.org/documents/webjunction/Communication_and_Partnerships_0
45_Tools.html 

 
• Community Partnership and Collaboration Guide (WebJunction): 

https://webjunction.org/documents/webjunction/Community_Partner_Collaboration_G
uide.html 

 
• Libraries Building Strong Community Partnerships (WebJunction): 

https://www.webjunction.org/news/webjunction/building-strong-community-
partnerships.html 

 
• Library Partnerships Bring People Together (Public Libraries Online): 

http://publiclibrariesonline.org/2017/03/library-partnerships-bring-people-together/ 
 

• Partnerships & Collaboration (WebJunction): https://www.webjunction.org/explore-
topics/partnerships.html 

 

WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP? 

Consult the library system for assistance. 

  

https://webjunction.org/documents/webjunction/Communication_and_Partnerships_045_Tools.html
https://webjunction.org/documents/webjunction/Communication_and_Partnerships_045_Tools.html
https://webjunction.org/documents/webjunction/Community_Partner_Collaboration_Guide.html
https://webjunction.org/documents/webjunction/Community_Partner_Collaboration_Guide.html
https://www.webjunction.org/news/webjunction/building-strong-community-partnerships.html
https://www.webjunction.org/news/webjunction/building-strong-community-partnerships.html
http://publiclibrariesonline.org/2017/03/library-partnerships-bring-people-together/
https://www.webjunction.org/explore-topics/partnerships.html
https://www.webjunction.org/explore-topics/partnerships.html
http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/libs/index.html


46  

APPENDIX A: LAWS AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO MINIMUM PUBLIC LIBRARY 
STANDARDS IN NEW YORK STATE 

Listed below are links to the New York Laws and Regulations cited in this document.  Page numbers refer 
to the location of the citation in the Helpful Information for Meeting Minimum Public Library Standards 
document. 

Education Law, Section 254: Standards of Library Service 
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/254 
Page 1 
 
Regulations of the Commissioner, Section 90.1: Registration of Libraries 
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I36517e95c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText
&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default) 
Page 1 
 
Regulations of the Commissioner, Section 90.2 Standards for Registration  
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I36517e98c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText
&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default) 
Page 2 
 
Education Law, Section 226: Powers of Trustees of Institutions 
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/226 
Page 3 
 
Education Law, Section 260-A: Meetings of Board of Trustees 
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/260-A 
Page 20 
 
Civil Practice Laws and Rules, Section 4509: Library Records 
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/CVP/4509 
Page 20 
 
Not-for-Profit Corporation Law, Section 715-A: Conflict of Interest Policy 
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/NPC/715-A 
Page 21 
 
Not-for-Profit Corporation Law, Section 715-B 
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/NPC/715-B 
Page 21 
 
Regulations of the Commissioner of Education, Section 90.8 Appointment of Library Personnel 
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I3651ccb2c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText
&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default) 
Page 40  

https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/254
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/254
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I36517e95c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I36517e98c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/226
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/EDN/260-A
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/CVP/4509
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/NPC/715-A
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/NPC/715-B
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I3651ccb2c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I3651ccb2c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/nycrr/Document/I3651ccb2c22211ddb29d8bee567fca9f?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)


47  

APPENDIX B: STANDARDS FOR REGISTRATION, effective August 1, 2018 
 

AMENDMENT TO THE REGULATIONS OF THE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION 
 

Section 90.2 of the Regulations of the Commissioner shall be amended, to read as 

follows: 

§90.2 Standards for registration of public, free association and Indian libraries. 
 

(a) Registration standards through December 31, 2020. A public, free 
 

association or Indian library registered on or before December 31, 2020 shall meet the 
 

following registration standards: 
 

(1) is governed by written bylaws which outline the responsibilities and 

procedures of library board of trustees; 

(2) has a board-approved, written long-range plan of service; 
 

(3) presents an annual report to the community on the library's progress in 

meeting its goals and objectives; 

(4) has board-approved written policies for the operation of the library; 
 

(5) presents annually to appropriate funding agencies a written budget which 

would enable the library to meet or exceed these standards and to carry out its long- 

term plan of service; 

(6) periodically evaluates the effectiveness of the library's collections and 

services in meeting community needs; 

  



48  

(7) is open the following scheduled hours: 
 

 
Population Minimum Weekly Hours 

Open 
Up to 500 12 
500-2,499 20 
2,500-4,999 25 
5,000-14,999 35 
15,000-24,999 40 
25,000-99,999 55 
100,000 and above 60 

 

(8) maintains a facility to meet community needs, including adequate space, 

lighting, shelving, seating, and a restroom; 

(9) provides equipment and connections to meet community needs including, but 

not limited to a telephone, photocopier, telefacsimile capability, and microcomputer or 

terminal with printer, to provide access to other library catalogs and other electronic 

information; 

(10) distributes printed information listing the library’s hours open, borrowing 

rules, services, location and phone number; and 

(11) employs a paid director in accordance with the provisions of Section 90.8 of this 

Part. 

(b) [(1) Any public, free association or Indian library registered by the department at 

the time this section takes effect shall be required to meet the standards for registration in 

subdivision (a) of this section on the following schedule: 

(1) meet the standards of paragraphs (1) through (5) and (10) of subdivision (a) of 

this section on or before January 1, 1995. 

(2) meet the standards of paragraph (6) of subdivision (a) of this section on or 

http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/excerpts/finished_regs/908.htm


49  

before January 1, 1997. 

(3) meet the standards of paragraphs (7), (8), (9) and (11) of subdivision (a) of this 

section on or before January 1, 1999]. 

Registration standards on or after January 1, 2021. A public, free association or 
 

Indian library seeking to register with the Department on or after January 1, 2021 shall 
 

be registered with the Department if it meets the registration standards set forth in this 
 

subdivision in a manner satisfactory to the Commissioner. Any public, free association 
or Indian library that was registered by the Department on or before December 31, 

 

2020, shall meet the following registration requirements by January 1, 2021 to continue 
 

to be registered by the Department: 
 

(1) is governed by written bylaws which define the structure and governing 
 

functions of the library board of trustees, and which shall be reviewed and re-approved 
 

by the board of trustees at least once every five years or earlier if required by law; 
 

(2) has a community-based, board-approved, written long-range plan of service 
 

developed by the library board of trustees and staff; 
 

(3) provides a board-approved written annual report to the community on the 
 

library's progress in meeting its mission, goals and objectives, as outlined in the library’s 
 

long-range plan of service; 
 

(4) has board-approved written policies for the operation of the library, which 
 

shall be reviewed and updated at least once every five years or earlier if required by 
 

law; 
 

(5) annually prepares and publishes a board-approved, written budget, which 
 

enables the library to address the community’s needs, as outlined in the library’s long- 



50  

range plan of service; 
 

(6) periodically evaluates the effectiveness of the library's programs, services and 
 

collections to address community needs, as outlined in the library’s long-range plan of 
 

service; 

(7) is open the following scheduled hours: 
 

 
Population 

Minimum Weekly 
Hours Open 

Up to 500 12 

500-2,499 20 

2,500-4,999 25 

5,000-14,999 35 

15,000-24,999 40 

25,000-99,999 55 

100,000 and 
above 

60 

 

(8) maintains a facility that addresses community needs, as outlined in the 
 

library’s long-range plan of service, including adequate space, lighting, shelving, 
 

seating, power and data infrastructure, and a public restroom; 
 

(9) provides programming to address community needs, as outlined in the 
 

library’s long-range plan of service; 
 

(10) provides a circulation system that facilitates access to the local library 
 

collection and other library catalogs; and provides equipment, technology, and internet 
 

connectivity to address community needs and facilitate access to information; 
 

(11) provides access to current library information in print and online, facilitating 
 

the understanding of library services, operations and governance; information provided 
 

online shall include the standards referenced in paragraphs one through five of this 
 

subdivision; 



51  

 

(12) employs a paid director in accordance with the provisions of Section 90.8 of 
 

this Part; 
 

(13) provides library staff with annual technology training, appropriate to their 
 

position, to address community needs, as outlined in the library’s long-range plan of 
 

service; and 

(14) establishes and maintains partnerships with other educational, cultural or 
 

community organizations which enable the library to address the community’s needs, as 
 

outlined in the library’s long-range plan of service 

 

(c) Variances. If circumstances over which any public, free association or Indian library 

has no control prevent it from meeting one or more of the standards of service set forward in 

subdivision (a) or subdivision (b) of this section, such library may apply for a variance for such 

standard(s). The application for such variance shall be submitted for such library by the public 

library system of which such library is a member, in a form prescribed by the commissioner. 

No variance granted pursuant to this subdivision shall be deemed to relieve a public, free 

association or Indian library of any obligation imposed by any other provision of federal or 

state law. 

http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/excerpts/finished_regs/908.htm

	AgendaOct102019BoardMeeting
	Board of Trustee Minutes October 10, 2019
	Warrant #3 September 2019
	Sep 2019_P&L by class_full
	Sep 2019_P&L by class
	Sep 2019_P&L.xlsx
	September2019DirectorReport
	Holidays_2020
	NYSLibraryStandards
	Helpful Information for Meeting Minimum Public Library Standards In New York State
	INTRODUCTION
	Members of the Work Group

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #1: WRITTEN BYLAWS
	WHY ARE BYLAWS NECESSARY?
	WHAT IS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE BOARD'S BYLAWS AND THE LIBRARY'S CHARTER?
	WHAT DO BYLAWS TYPICALLY CONTAIN?
	TRUSTEE ATTENDANCE AND THE BYLAWS?
	WHAT DOES THE CHARTER CONTAIN?
	HELPFUL TIP: If the library’s current charter does state a range of trustees (e.g., 5 to 15), the Board can change the number of trustees at any time by amending the bylaws. However, if the charter states a specific number of trustees (e.g., 7 trustee...

	SHOULD BYLAWS BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?
	Mission Statement
	Preamble
	Bylaws


	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #2: LONG-RANGE PLAN
	WHY IS A LONG-RANGE PLAN IMPORTANT FOR EVERY LIBRARY?
	WHAT IS A LONG-RANGE PLAN? DOES IT DIFFER FROM A STRATEGIC PLAN?
	WHAT IS THE PROCESS FOR LONG-RANGE PLANNING?
	1. Develop a board vision. Have a conversation at a special planning meeting to discuss the hopes, dreams, and concerns for the future of the library.

	WHO PARTICIPATES IN THE PROCESS?
	WHAT ARE THE COMPONENTS OF A LONG-RANGE PLAN?
	HOW MANY YEARS SHOULD A LONG-RANGE PLAN COVER?
	HOW DOES A LIBRARY USE THE PLAN?
	SHOULD LONG-RANGE PLANS OF SERVICE BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #3: REPORT TO THE COMMUNITY
	WHY PRESENT AN ANNUAL REPORT TO THE COMMUNITY?
	WHO IS THE AUDIENCE?
	WHAT SHOULD THE REPORT INCLUDE?
	WHAT FORMATS AND MEANS OF DISTRIBUTION ARE USEFUL?
	SHOULD THE ANNUAL REPORT BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #4: WRITTEN POLICIES
	WHY ARE WRITTEN POLICIES NECESSARY?
	WHAT ARE THE FOUR TESTS FOR LEGALLY ENFORCEABLE POLICIES?
	HOW ARE POLICIES DEVELOPED?
	In general, policies should be clear and concise, legal and fair. The library board is responsible for creating such policies, reviewing and revising them, and ultimately enforcing them with the assistance of the library director and staff. While trus...
	WHAT POLICIES SHOULD A LIBRARY HAVE?
	SHOULD POLICIES BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #5: WRITTEN BUDGET
	WHY IS PRESENTATION OF A BOARD-APPROVED WRITTEN BUDGET TO THE PUBLIC NECESSARY?
	WHO SHOULD PREPARE THE BUDGET?
	WHAT SHOULD THE BUDGET INCLUDE?
	SHOULD BUDGETS BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE COMMUNITY?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #6: EVALUATING EFFECTIVENESS
	WHAT IS EVALUATION?
	WHY IS EVALUATION ESSENTIAL?
	WHAT CAN BE EVALUATED?
	WHAT IS THE PROCESS FOR EVALUATING EFFECTIVENESS?
	WHAT SHOULD BE DONE WITH THE FINDINGS?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #7: HOURS
	WHY ARE MINIMUM WEEKLY HOURS IMPORTANT?
	WHAT ABOUT EVENINGS, WEEKENDS AND HOLIDAYS?
	HOW DOES A LIBRARY COUNT THE HOURS IF IT HAS BRANCHES?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #8: MAINTAINING A FACILITY TO MEET COMMUNITY NEEDS
	HOW DOES THE LIBRARY DETERMINE IF THE FACILITY IS ADEQUATE?
	WHAT INFORMATION SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN A MASTER FACILITY PLAN?
	HOW DOES A LIBRARY USE A FACILITY PLAN?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #9: PROGRAMMING
	WHY SHOULD LIBRARIES PROVIDE PROGRAMMING?
	WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF PROGRAMMING?
	BEST PRACTICES FOR PROGRAM PLANNING AND SCHEDULING
	RESOURCES
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #10: TECHNOLOGY TO MEET COMMUNITY NEEDS
	WHAT IS A CIRCULATION SYSTEM?
	WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF AN INTEGRATED LIBRARY SYSTEM (ILS)?
	WHAT IS MEANT BY EQUIPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY, AND INTERNET CONNECTIVITY?
	WHAT DOES THIS MEAN TO THE LIBRARY?
	BEST PRACTICES

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #11: PROVIDES ACCESS TO CURRENT LIBRARY INFORMATION
	WHY HAVE PRINTED AND ONLINE INFORMATION ABOUT THE LIBRARY?
	WHAT TYPES OF INFORMATION SHOULD BE INCLUDED?
	WHAT FORMATS AND MEANS OF DISTRIBUTION ARE ACCEPTABLE?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #12 EMPLOYS A PAID DIRECTOR
	WHY HAVE A PAID DIRECTOR?
	WHAT ARE THE PROVISIONS OF COMMISSIONER'S REGULATION 90.8?
	WHAT IS THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITY IN MEETING THIS STANDARD?
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?
	Consult the library system for assistance.

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #13: TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FOR STAFF
	WHY IS ANNUAL TECHNOLOGY TRAINING NECESSARY FOR LIBRARY STAFF?
	ORGANIZING AND PLANNING TECHNOLOGY TRAINING
	WHAT ARE SOME TECHNOLOGY TRAINING RESOURCES?

	HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR MEETING STANDARD #14: COMMUNITY PARTNERS
	WHY ESTABLISH PARTNERSHIPS WITHIN THE COMMUNITY?
	WHAT ARE SOME TYPES OF ORGANIZATIONS AND GROUPS WITH WHICH A LIBRARY CAN FORM PARTNERSHIPS?
	WHAT ARE THE GOALS OF THESE PARTNERSHIPS?
	RESOURCES TO HELP GET STARTED WITH COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS:
	WHERE CAN THE LIBRARY GO FOR HELP?

	APPENDIX A: LAWS AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO MINIMUM PUBLIC LIBRARY STANDARDS IN NEW YORK STATE
	APPENDIX B: STANDARDS FOR REGISTRATION, effective August 1, 2018

	Each library. . . has a community-based, board-approved, written long-range plan of service developed by the library board of trustees and staff.
	Minimum Weekly Hours Open
	Population
	12
	Up to 500
	20
	500-2,499
	25
	2,500-4,999
	35
	5,000-14,999
	40
	15,000—24,999
	55
	25,000-99,999
	60
	100,000 and above




